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This is Global Limited
Group Strategic Report

The directors present their strategic report for This is Global Limitad and its subsidiaries (the "Group™) for the year
ended 31 March 2016

Principal activity
The Group's principal activity during the year was the operation of commercial radto stations in the United Kingdom

Business review

This business review gives greater emphasis to those matters which are significant to This 15 Global Umited (the
"Company™ and its subsidiary undertalungs when viewed as a whole

The year ended 31 March 2016 was the seventh consecutive year of growth in profitability for the Group with
adjusted EBITDA of £74 5m {as defined in note 2 below), showing growth of over 2 9% on the prior year's figure of
£72 4m Qperating margin fell from 27 3% to 27 0%

The mamn reason for the increase In profitabiity was the 4 6% growth in our commercial revenues in the year,
which indudes six months' revanues from the acguisition of Juice FM in Liverpool Our commercial revenues also
continued to outperform the wider market For the penod from 1 Aprit 2015 to 31 March 2016 our commercial
revenues Increased by 3 8% cn a hke for lke basis, whereas the market increased by 3 1% in that same penod
{source Radiocentire website)

Durnng the year, Global's radio stations achieved an average weekly audience of 23 8 million listeners (source
RAJAR Q2 2015 - Q1 2016 average) This compares to last year's audience of 23 1 million hsteners and reflects

the conttnuing guaiity and populanty of cur statons Qur stations reached 45% of the UK population on a weekly
basis

Global's Make Some Noise charity continued to raise money for disadvantaged children and young people and to
giva a voice to smaller chanties that find & hard to get heard Make Soma Noise raised over £2 6m (2015 £2 3m)
in the year, and awarded grants to more than 40 charities and projects acress the UK

in Septamber 2015 we launched a brand new national channel, Radio X Featunng Chns Moyles, Johnny Vaughan
and Ricky Wilson Radio X aims to bring listeners the best fresh rock and guitar-based music across the UK

In Qctober 2015, we started construction of the new Global Academy, a university technical college to provide
academic and vocational training for studen{s who want to work in the broadcast and digital media industnes The
Global Academy will open for the start of the next academic year, 1in September 2016

In January 2018, we brought the UK's number 1 hit music station to Liverpool, with the launch of 107 & Capital FM

Uverpool Capital Liverpoot will play the biggest hits from the hottast nit music artista of the moment The launch of
Capital Liverpool fallowed our purchase of Juice FM from UTV

We continusd to expand our Dngital Audio Exchange ("DAX") following the success of its launch last year DAX
gives advertisers a single buying point to access the digital audio market We have now expanded the service
across 18 European counties and more than 150 audio platforms are offanng their advertising via DAX

The directors noted that the streng financial performance, combined with the continued hugh quahty programming
output of gur stabions and significant progress on a number of strategic objectives, represented another extrernely
successful yaar for the Group

Dunng the year £49,166,980 of loans waere converted to 49,156,980 ordinary £1 shares which were 1ssued, called
up and fully paid

Financlal performance

The consolidated income statement s set out on page 9 and shows revenue for the year ended 31 March 2016 of
£276 2m, an wcrease of 4 1% on last year's figure of £2652m Operating profit of £80 1m rose by £38m
compared to last year's figure of £56 5m Operating profit 18 stated after charging depreciation of £4 1m (2015
£3 9m) and amorttsation of £5 4m (2015 €2 7m) The loss before taxation of £8 9m (2015 £35 8m) has decreased
mamly due to movements n the fair value of the lcans and interest on shareholder and other loans

The directors consider that adiustoed EBITDA (as defined in note 2 below) represents a key measure of the
business performance as it demonstrates the underlying trading performance The results for the year set out

below show growth of £2 1m (3 0%) In adjusted EBITDA from £72 4m 1n 2015 to £74 5m for the year ended 31
March 2016 :




This is Global Limited

Group Strategic Report (continued)

Financlal performance (continued)

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2016 March 2015

£m £m

Commercial revenue 2547 2436
Other revenue 215 218
Total revenue 276 2 2652
Direct costs 487 S05
Gross profit 226 5 214 7
Other cperating costs (note 1) 1520 142 3
Adjusted EBITDA (note 2} 745 724
Operating margin 27 0% 27 3%

Note 1 Direct costs exclude depreciation, amarisation and charges or credits relating to non-recurnng iems
including restructunng and integration costs such as launch costs Including rebranding, redundancy costs and
vacant property provisions

Note 2 Adwustad EBITDA comprises eamings before mterast, tax, dapreciation and amortisation and 15 stated
befora any charges or credits relating to non-recurring items including rastructunng and integration costs such as
launch costs including rebranding, redundancy costs and vacant propenly provisions

Golng concern

The directors confirm that, after making enquiries, they have a reasonable expectation that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational extstence for the foreseeable future For this reason they confinue to
adopt the gomg concern basis of accounting in prepanng these financial statements Further information around
tha assessment of going concern can be found on note 1 of the financial statements

Future developments

The directors balieve that the current leve! of actvity will continue for the foreseeable future and they look forward
to a retumn to stable growth in the UK market The directors continue to explore a number of opportunities to grow
and axpand the existing business

Princlpal risks and uncertainties

The principal risks faced by the business can be divided into operational, commergial, financial and credit nsks
The nsks are monitored and managed at a Group level and by local management teams

Operational risk

Audience levels at the Group's stations could erode the Group's position, both in local markets and in tha national
marketplace If they were to decline To address this, the Group markets its radio brands regulay and continually
strives to improve programming standards to increase audwences The Group carries out research on s hsteners,
buiding profiles of their likes and dislikes, and uses this to develop both the sound of the stations, and the music
they play

Commercial risk

There 18 a nsk that weakness in the adverlising market could put pressure on traditional rovenue streams To
address this, the Group has bean developing its relationship with advertisers and agencies to ensure that the value
of its brands 1s fully realised This includes offering tailored solutions to advertisers and highlighting the breadth of
our producis The development of new media opportunities s at the heart of the Group's strategy, which over time
will reduca the pressure on our traditional revenve generators

Whilst the impact of the United Kingdom leaving the Europsan Union 1s uncertais and hard to assess, based on
current UK growth forecasts there 1s a sk that our revenuas will be lower than forecast In addibon, there are other
related factors which affect the Group, for example, the impact of a tougher UK business environment on interest
rates and therefore long-term bond yields and the group pension liabihties

Financial risk

The Group is pnmanly funded by both related party and bank debt Bank debt has been reduced In the year The
Group's operations are cash-generalive, and general exposure to liquidtty nsk 1s considerad to be low The Group
monitors performance agamst its banking covenants on a quarterly basis
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Group Strategic Report (continued)
Credit risk

The Group actively mitigates the risk of payment default by Its customers by the use of trade credil insurance and
by reviewing oulstanding payments and provisions for payment default regularly

Key performance Indicators
The business uses key performance indicators which are monitored on a regular bagis and inciude audience trands
such as weekly reach, histening hours, share of the market and demographic mix, as well as financial indicators

such aa revenue, adjustad EBITDA and operating margins Variance analysis 1s performed monthly and vanances
are monitored and discussed within a formal meeting structure

Thus report was approved by the board and signed on its behalf by

0. S g
D D Singer
Director

29 July 2018




This is Global Limited

Directors’ Report

The directors present the directors' report and the financial statements of the Group and the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2016

Results and dividends

The loss for the year, after taxation and non-controlling interests, amounted to £7 9m (2015 loss of £32 5m) The
directors do not recommend the payment of a dwdend (2015 £nil)

Directors
The directors whe served dunng the year and to the date of this report were

Lord Allen of Kensington CBE (Chairman)
A D Tabor

S G Miron

RFJ Park

M D Connole (resigned 14 August 2015)
M Gordon

W Harding

I L Hanson

D D Singer (appointed 9 November 2015)

Political and charitable contributions

The Group s involved with a numbar of chanties that are inked to its radio operations and duting the course of
the financial year, the Group's chanties were involved in fundraising activities which generated £3 2m (2015
£3 9m) for its own and many other third-party causes

As well as prowiding significant radio aitime to promote the achivities and events of ts chantes, the Group
provides a numher of services to these chanties, ingluding the use of offices and administration services, free of
charge

The Group's donations to external chantes amounted to £50,124 (2015 £127,697) No contnbutions were made
to polibcal orgarisations  The chantable and political donations of the Company amounted to £mil (2015 £n1l)

Future developments

The directors beligve that the current level of activity will continue for the foreseeable future and they look forward
tc a retum to stable growth in the UK advertising market, notwithstanding the uncertain impact of the UK exiting
the European Unlon The directors conhnue to explore a number of opportuniies to grow and expand the
axisting business

Financial instruments

The Group's risk management process and the polictes for mitigating certain type of nsks are set out In note 20
Details of the financal instruments used for these purposes are n note 16 to the consoldated financial
statements

Employee involvement

The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its people and has continued to keep them informed
on matters affecting their employment and on the vaenous factors affecting the performance of the Group and the
Company This 1s achwaved through formal and infoomal meetings Employee representatives are consulted
regularly on a wide range of matters affecting therr current and future interests

Disabled employees

Applications for employment from disabied persons are always fully considersd, bearing in mind the abilities of
the applicant concerned As a people focused business we make sure that we recruit the nght person for the job
every time, whatever their background

In the event of a member of staff becoming disabled every efiort is made 10 ensure that ther employment with the
Group continues and that approprate adjustments are made It 1s the policy of the Group and the Company that
the training, career development and promaotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be dentical to
that of other employees
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Directors’' Report (continued)
Qualifying third party indemnity provisiona

The directors benefit from quahfying third party indemeuty provisions in place The Group also prowided qualifying
third party indemnilty prowistons to cartain directors of associated companies during the financiat year

Matters covered in the strategic report

Details of the pnncipal nsks faced by the Group, ncluding cperational nisk, credit nsk and liquidity nisk are
discussed in the Group Strategic Report

Provislon of information to the auditor
Each of the persons who are directors at the iime when this Directors' Report 1s approved has confirmed that

« so far as that each director 1s aware, there i1s no relevant audit mformation of which the Group and the
Company's auditor 1s unaware, and

+ that each director has taken ali the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to be aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group and the Company's auditor 18 aware of
that information

Auditor

Under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2008, Deloitte LLP will be deemed to have been resppointed as
auditor 28 days after these financial statements were sent to members or 28 days after the latast date prescnbed
for filng the accounts with the registrar, whichever 1s earlier

This report was approved by the board and s:lgned or its behalf by
(0 : S s
D.D Singer

Director
28 July 2018




This is Global Limited

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the stratagic report, directors' report and the financial statements in
accordance wrth apphcable law and regulations

Company law raquires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year  Under that law the
drectors have elected to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with Internatonal Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRS"), and the Company finandal statements in
accordance with tnited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Prachce ("UK GAAP") and applicable law
Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affars of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for
that year

in prepanng these financial statements, the directors are required ta

+ select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

« make judgemsnis and accounbng estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

« state whether the group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and the Company
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK GAAP, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

« prepare the financial statements on the gaing concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue 1n busingss

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explam the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company
and enable them lo ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also
responsible far safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other iregularities

Directors' statement as to the disclosure of Information to auditors

All of the current directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of
any information needed by the Company's auditors for the purposes of ther audit and to establish that the
auditors are aware of that information The directors are not aware of any relevant audit information of which the
auditors are unaware
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independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of This is Global Limited

We have audited the financial statements of This 158 Global Limited for the year ended 31 March 2016 which
comprise the Group income Statement, the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group Statement of
Financial Position, the Group Statement of Changes in Equity, the Group Statement of Cash Flows, the Parent
Company Balance Sheet and the Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes 1 to 38
The financial reporting framewerk that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements 18
applicable law and international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Europaan Union  The
financial reporting framework that has been applired in tha preparation of the parent company financial statements
15 applicable taw and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Prachce), tncluding FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework”

This report 1s made solely 1o the company's members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Comparses Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken se that we might state tc the company's members
those matters we are required to state to them 1n an auditor's report and for no other purpose  To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept o7 assume responsibibity to anyona other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and audltor

As explamned mora fully in the Statement of Direclors’ Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view Qur
responstbility is to audit and express an opimon on the financial statements in accordance with applhcablo law
and Internaticnal Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices 8oard's Ethical Standards for Auditers

Scope of the audit of the flnanciat statements

An audit involves cbtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give roasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether causad by
fraud or error  This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policles are appropriate to the Graup's
and the parent company's circumstances and have been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the
financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financia! information i the annual repor to
identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that 1s
apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally Inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us In the
course of performing the audit  If we become aware of any apparent matenial misstatements or Inconsistencies
we consider the mplications for our report

Opinlon on financlal statemants

In our opinion

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company's
affairs as at 31 March 2016 and of the Group's loss for the year then ended,

. the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adepted by
the European Union,

. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

. the financial statements have been prepared 1n accordunce with lhe iequirements of the Companies Act
2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinian the information given in the Group Strategic Report and the Directors' Report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared i1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by axception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companes Act 2006 requires us to report
to you if, tn our opinon

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retums adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not wisited by us, or

- the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns,
or

. certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

. we have not receved all the information and explanations we raquire for our audit

M. C.Loa.- Aartat |

Mark Lee-Amies FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LELP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, UK

28 July 2016




This is Global Limited

Group Income Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Revenue

Direct costs

Gross profit
Administrative axpansas
Operating profit

Finance mcome
Finance expense

Neot finance costs

Share of profit of equity-accounted investees, net of tax
Loss before taxation

Incamae tax credit

Loss for the yoar

Arributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Year anded 31

Year anded 31

March 2016 March 2015
Note £000 £'000
2 278,247 265,195
(49,714) (50.513)
226,533 214,682
{1686,410) (158,167)
60,123 56,515
7 1,637 2,037
8 (72,301) (04.978)
(70,684) (92,841)
872 583
(9.869) (35,843)
9 1,543 3,33
(7,926) (32.612)
(9,103) (33,619}
1,177 1,107
(7,926} (32,512)

The notes on pages 14 to 43 form part of these financial statements




This is Global Limited

Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year anded 31 March 2016

Note
Loss for the year
ftems that will nat be reclassified to profit ar loss
Actuarial loss relatad to the pension scheme 28
Daferrad tax on actuanal loss 18

Other comprehensive loss for the yaar, net of tax
Total comprehensive logs for the year

Arributable to

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interasts

The notas on pages 14 to 43 form part of these financial statements

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2018 March 2015
£'000 £000
(7,928) (32,512)
{1,135) {2,629)

204 6525
{8,857) (34,616)
(8,857) {34.816)
(10,034) {35,723)

1177 1,107
{8,857) {34,616)

10




This is Global Limited

Group Statement of Financiat Position

At 31 March 2016
Reglstored number 06251684

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Equity accounted investments

tnvestments

Surpius on defined benefit pension scheme
Deferrad tax asset

Current asaets

Current tax assets

Trade and cther receivabies
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current flabllities

Trade and other payables
Borrowngs

Prowvisions

Non-currant {labilitles
Borrowings
Provisions

Total [tabilitles

Net llabilitlos

EQUITY
Shara capital
Retained deficit

Arributable to-
Sharehoiders funds
Non-controlling interests
Total equity

The notes on pages 14 to 43 form part of these financial statements

Nate

10
11
12
13
26
18

14

15
16
17

16
17

19

31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014
2016 2015
£'000 £000 E'C00
337,963 325,168 324,818
24,107 19,217 18,050
766 842 880
6,780 180 180
3,524 4,432 8,570
5,285 5118 1,170
377,405 354 955 348,466
379 121 1,987
46,147 42,083 49,347
35,722 43,097 73,144
82,248 85,301 124,488
459,663 440,256 472 954
49,548 47,233 51,014
42,297 40,462 29,169
1,221 1,011 1,124
83,068 88,708 81,307
820,872 843614 847,472
1,338 2,723 3,529
822,208 846,337 851,001
216,274 835,043 932,308
(456,621) {494 787) {459,354}
49,167 - .
(504,788) (494 787) (459,364)
456,621 494 787 459,354
(456,8386) (495,967) (460,314)
1,214 1,180 980
465,621 494 787 459,354

The financial statements wera approved and authornsed for issue by the board of directors on 29 July 2018 and

we sug:Sd on its behalf by.
, .~

O I Singer e
Diractor
29 July 201
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Group Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Shere capital  Ratalned Tatal MNon- Total equity
) deficit controliing
Naie intarests
£:000 £'000 £000 £'000 £:000

At1 Aprii 2018 . 1480,314) {480 314) 880 {459 354)
Less for the year - {33,819) £33.819) - (33,810)
Non-contralling intarast share of profit - - . 1107 1107
Dividends paid to nan-controfling Interasts . - - (1184 {1,184
Purchase of non-controlling interests - . - (66} {68)
incresss in non-controlling Interests . - - a78 are
Actuaria! loss related to the pension scheme 28 . {2 828) (2,029) - {26826)
Deferred tax on actuariel loss 18 - 526 525 - 526
Nan-controlling interests acquirad in the year - 70 70 - 70
At 31 March 2016 - {485.087) (485.087) 1,160 _[404.787)
At 1 April 2018 . {495 867) {485,087) 1,180 (404,767
Loss for the year - {8 103} (8,103} - (8107)
Non-controlhing inlerest ahare of profil . - - 1177 1177
Shares issuad in the year 18 49187 - 48 167 - 40,187
Actuarlel Ioas related to the pension schame 26 - {1.138) (1,138) - (1,138}
Deterred tsx on actuarial loss 18 . 204 204 . 204
Dividends pald to non-controlling inlerasts - - - (1,143) 1,142)
At 31 March 2016 48 167 [E06,002} {456,335) 1,214 (455,621)

The notes on pages 14 to 43 form part of these financial stataments

12
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Group Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Cash flows from operating acllvities
Loss for the year

Adfustments for.
Depraciation
Amortisation

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and mtangble

assels

Net finance costs

Share of resuits of associates and joint ventures
Movement in retirement benefit abligations
Movement in non-controlling interests on acquisition
Increase in non-controlling interests

Fair vaiue adjustments on prior year acquistions
income tax credit

Changes in

Trade and other racavables
Trade and other payables
Provisions

Cash generated from operating activities

Interest paid
Income taxes (paid)/ recovared
Nat cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Dividends received from assoclates

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Acquisiton of subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Acquisition of investmeants

Acqusition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisttion of Intangible assets

Acquisition of non-controlling mterests

Cash flows from financing activitias
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayments of loans and borrowings
Payment of debt 1ssue costs

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Decrease In cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year

Cash and cash aquivalents at the andg of the year

The notes on pages 14 to 43 form par of these financial statements

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2016 March 2015
£'000 £'000
{7,926) {32,512)
4141 3925
5,365 2,708
- 7
70,864 92,941
(872) (583)
(74) (183)
- 70
- 376
- 18
(1,943) {3331)
69,555 63.434
{3,729) 7,262
(2,7565) (4,643)
{1,203} (818)
61,868 65,134
{5,655) {2,581)
(375) 1,787
55,838 64,340
80 178
757 925
- 118
{4,325) -
{6,600) {307)
{9,031} (5,200}
(6,223) (6,291)
- (68}
{24,842) (10,643)
- 200,000
{37.228) {281,250)
- (1,300)
{1,143) (1194)
(38,374) (83,744)
{7,375) (30,047}
43,097 73,144
35,722 43,097

13
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements

1. Accounting policles
a) Reporting entity

This 13 Global Limited (the "Company®™) 1s incorparated and domiciied in the United Kingdom

These consoidated financial statements are for the This is Giobal Limited group {the "Group”) and they compnse
the Company and its subsidianes which are listed in full In note 34 of the Company financial statements

The Group’s principal actvity during the year was the operation of commercial radio stations in the United
Kingdom

The Group financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 29 July 2018
b) Statement of compliance

The financtal statements of the Group have been prapared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union (*IFRS") and the Companies Act 2006

¢) Functional and presentational currency

*

Thesae financial statements are presented in pounds Sterling (£), which 18 the Group and the Company's functicnal
and presentatonal currency All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated

d)} Basls of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis The accounting policies set out below
have been applied consistently to the Group to all pernods presentad in these financial statements

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group prepared financial statements n
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (‘UK GAAP") These financial

statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 (the "reporiing date™) are the first the Group has prepared in
accordance with IFRS

The Group's deemed transition date to IFRS ts 1 April 2014, detaiis of how the transltion from UK GAAP to IFRS
has affacted the Group's reported positton and performance are gwven in note 31 to the Group financial
statements The principles and requirements for first time adoption of (FRS are set out ;n IFRS 1 First-time
adoptron of International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS 17) IFRS 1 allows certain exemptions in the
application of particular standards to prior penods in order to assist companies with the transition process

a) Basls of consolidation

The Group financial statements compnse the financial statements of the Company and its subsidianes The

financial statements of subsidiznes are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent company, using
consistent accounting policies

A subsidiary i1s an entity controlled, ether directly or indirectty, by the Company An invastor contrels an investee
whan It 1s exposed, or has nights, to variable returns from Ilts involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through s powar over the Investee

The results of a subsidiary acquired during the period are included In the Group's results from the effective date
on which contral is transferred to the Group Al intercompany balances and transactions, including unrealised
profits ansing from intra-Group transactions, have been eliminated n full

Non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets at the
date of transiticn

f) Interests In aquity-accountad investments
The Group's interests in equity-accounted investeas compnse interests in assoctates and joint ventures

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not contral or joint control, over the
financial and operating policies A joint venture s an arrangemant in which the Group has joint control, whereby

the Group has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather then rights to its assets and obligations for its
llabilitbes

Interests in associates and the joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method They are mitally
recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs Subsequent to imitial recogmbion, the conschidated financial
statements include the Group's share of profit or loss and other comprehansive income of equity-accountad
nvestees, until the date on which significant mfluence or jont control ceases

.
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This is Globhal Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
1 Accounting policies (continued)
g) New accounting standards and interpretations not yet affactive

Tha following new standards, amendments to siandards and interpretations issued by the Intemational
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB®) became effective dunng the year ended 31 March 2016 The accounting
pohcies adopted i the presemtation of these financial statements refiact the adoplion of the following new
standards, amendments to standards and interpretations as of 1 April 2015 These have not has any matenal
Impact on the financial statements

» Amendments to IAS 27 Equity method in separate financial stataments (effective 1 January 2016)

+« Amendments to {AS 18 and IAS 38 Clarifcaton of acceptable methods of depreciation and
amorusation (effective 1 January 2018)

« Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010 - 2014 Cycle (effective 1 January 2018)

« Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure wtnitiatives (effective 1 January 2016)

Standards effective tn future periods

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations tc existing standards have been published that are
relevant to the Group's activities and are mandatory for the Group's accounting penods beginning after 31
January 2016 or later and which the Group has decided not to adopt early

+ IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with custorners (will become effective for accounting penods
starting on or after 1 January 2017}’

* IFRS 8 Financsal Instruments (will become effective for accounting periods starling on or after 1
January 2018)!

The impact of these standards 8 currently being assessed
'~ The mandatory adoption under EU adapting regulations has not yet been confirmed
h} Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In preparng these financial statements, management has made [udgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of the Group sccounting policies and the reported amount of assets, habilities, income,
expenses and other disclosures The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical axperience
and various other factors that are belleved to be reasonable under the arcumstances The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis

Changes in accounting estmates may ba necessary if there are changes In the ¢ircumstances on which the
estimate was based, or as a result of new infarmation or further information  Such changes are recognised in the
penod 1n which the estmate 13 revised

Key assumptions about the future and key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a nsk of causing a matenal
adjustment to the carrying vaiue of assets and liabiliies over the next year are set out below

impalrment of goadwlli, intangible assets and property, plant and equipmaent

These assets are reviewed annually for impairment or more frequently If there s an indication of mpairment to
ensure that they are not carried above ther estimated recoverable amounts To assess f any impairment exsts,
estimates are made of the fulure cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposal

Actual cutcomes could vary from such estimates of discounted future cash flows,

Onerous lease provision

Wheare a leased property I1s no longer expected to be fully occupied or whare the costs excead the future expected
benefits, an onerous lease prowvision will be recogrised for that porton of the lease that s in axcess to the Group's
requirements and not fully recovered through sub-leasing, or through vaiue in use The aclual fulure expectad
costs could vary from the estimated prowision

Income taxes

Estimates may be required in determining the level of current and deferred income tax assets and habilives, which
the directors beleve are raasonable and adequately recognise any mncome tax related uncertaintes Vanous
factors may have favourable or adverse effacts on the income tax assets or liabilibtes These include changes n
tax legslation, tax rates and allowances, future levels of spending, the Group's level of future earmings and
eshtimated future taxable profits

Impairment of trade recelivables

The Group 15 required o make an estimate of the recoverable value of trade receivables When assessing
impalrment of trade receivables, management considers the age profile of recesvables as well as any specific
known problems or nsks
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This is Global Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
1 Accounting policies {continued)

h) Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Useful economic life of assets

The Group's policy for applying useful economic ivas and residual vatues of assets has been determined through
applying histoncal expenence and taking into consideration the nature of assets and thesr ntended us.

Control over the Group's subsidiaries

The Group must assess whether it controls its subsidiares when determining whether to consolidate the
subsidianes

The Group's Influence over associates

The Group must assess whether it has signficant influence over its asscciates when determining whether it
should equity account for the associates

)] Going concern
At 31 March 2016 the Group had net habihties of £455 6m (2015 £494 8m)

The Group has prepared detalled forecasts of expected future cash fiows for the three years ending 31 March
2010 ('the forecasts”) The Board considers the forecasts have been prepared on a prudent basis taking into
account current consensus forecasts of the radio advertising market However, the Group has also prepared a
worse than expected downside scanano Even unde) this sensitised scenano, the forecasts indicate that the

Group can continue to trade for the foreseeable future and operate within its faciity and the associated financial
covanants

The diractors consider it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis  The drectors’
forecasts show sutficient cash will be generated from the Group's operations to be able to repay the bank loan
and other obligations as they fall due

) Segment reporting

A segment 1s a componsnt of the Group that engages n business activittes from which it may eam revenues and
incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's other
components All operating segments’ operating results are rewewed regularly by the Group's board of directors to
make decisions about resources to be allocated to a segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete
financial information 1s avallable {see note 2)

K) Forelgn currency translation

Forewgn currency transactions are translated imto pound Sterling, the Group’s functional currency, using the
exchange rates prevaiing al the dates of the fransactions or valuation where items are re-measured Foreign
currency translation gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the transtation at
year-end axchange rates of monetary essets and abiities denaminated in fareign currencies are recognised in
the Income Staterment Foreign currency translation gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the Income Statement within finance incoma or finance expense All other fareign

currency translation gains and losses are presentsd in the Income Statement within direct costs and
administrative expenses

The assels and habilibes of foreign operations, inciuding goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on

consolidation, are translated to the Group's functional currency, Sterling, at foreign currancy exchange rates ruling
at the reporting date

The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translaled at an average rate for the pernod, which
approximates the foreign currency exchange rates ruling et the dates of the transactions Exchange differences
ansing from the translation of foreign operations are reperted in other comprehansive income

)] Inveatments
Investments are included n the Statement of Fimancial Paswion {or Batance Sheel) at cost less amounts written-

off, representing mpairment in value. Impairment charges are recorded If avents or changes In circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable
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This is Global Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
1 Accounting policies (continued)
m)  Proparty, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment lossaes Cost
mncludes the onginal purchase pnce of the assets and costs atiributable to bringing the asset to its working
condion for its intended use

Property, plant and equipment 18 depreciated at rates calculated to wnte off the cost less residual value of each .

asset ovar its useful aconomic life on a straight ine basis over the following penods

Freehold property 25tc 50 years
Capitalised leassehold costs Over the term of the lease
Fixtures, fittngs and technical equipment 3 to 10 years
Transmitters 20 years

Gains and losses on disposals of assets are calculated as the difference between the proceeds raceiwved and the
carrytng value of the asset at the time of disposal and are recegnised In profit or loss

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

imparment reviews of property, plamt and equipmemnt are underaken whenever ovenis or changes in
cireumstances indicate therr carrying value may not be recoverable If the fair value of an asset I1s estimated o be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to s recoverable amount Where an impairment
loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount s increased to the revised estimate, but restricted so that the
Increased amount does not exceed the camrying amount that would have been determined had no impaimment loss
besn recognised in prior years Any impairment losses or reversals are recognised immediately 1n the income.
statement

n) Intangibla assets
Software costs

Purchased software costs are stated at cost, net of accumulated deprecietion and impairment losses Costs
associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense as incurred

Software development costs that are directly attnbutable to the design and testing of wentfiable and unique
software products controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when the following cntena are met

- it s technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use,

- management intends to complete the software product and use or sell 1t,

- theres an ability to use or sell the software product,

- it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic banefits;

- adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
scftware product ere avalable, and

- the expendiure attributable to the software product dunng its devalopment can be reltably measured

Software cosls recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful ives of three ysars
Radlo lfcences

Radio licences are valued at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses Radio
licences are amortised over the period of the licence .

impairment of Intangib!é assets (excluding goodwill)

impairment reviaws are undertaken whenever events of changes in cvcumstances mdicate their carrying value
may not be recoverable If the fair value of an intangible assets estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount s reduced to its recoverable amount. Where an impaiment loss subsequently revarses, the
carrying amount 18 increased to the revised eslimate, but restncted so that the increased amount does not excesed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impaiment loss been recognised n prior years
Any impairmant [0ssas or reversals ara racogrsed wamediately tn the Income Statemant

o) Goodwlll

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisiion method The costs of an acquisition 1s measured
as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at the acquisibon date fair value and the amount of
any non-contrelling interest in the acquires Acquisition costs incurred are expensed and included
administrative expenses

Any contingent considaration to be transfarred by the Group will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date
Subsequent changes to the fair value wili be recognised either within the Income Statement or In other
comprehensive incoms,

Goodwill on acguisition 13 initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combnation ovar
the Group's interast In the net far value of the wWentifiable assets, hiabiities and contingent liabiities Identfiable
intangible assets, meeung aither the contractuai-Hegal or saparability critanon are recognised separately from
goodwil Following inittal recoghition, goodwill 1s measured al cost less any accumulated impayment losses

17




This is Global Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
1) Accounting policies (continued)
o} Goadwlil (continued)

Goodwill in respect of an acquirad subsidiary 1s recognised as an intangible asset Goodwlil in respect of an
acquired associate or joint venture 1s included within investments accounted for using the equity method

Goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired

Where the fair value of the interest acquired in an entity’s assets, habikties and contingent habilittes exceeds the
considaration paid, the excess is recogmsed immedrately as a gain in the Incoma Statement

As at the acquisition date, any goodwill acquired 1s allocated to each of the cash-generating units expected to
banefit from the combination's synergies Impairment 1s determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit, to which the goodwill relates Where the recoverable amount of the cash generating unitis
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss s recogrised Where goodwiil forms part of a cash ganerating
unit and pan of the operation within that unit 15 disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
15 Included i the ¢arrying amount of the operation when determining the gan or loss on disposal of the operation
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance 1s measurad on the basts of the relative values of the eperation
disposed of and the portion of the cash generating unit retained

As permitted by IFRS 1, the Group elected not to apply IFRS 3 Busmess Combinations ("IFRS 3%) to business
combinations that occurred before 1 April 2014 As a result, goodwill recognised as an asset under UK GAAP as

et 1 Apnl 2014 has not been revised retrospectively to identify and extract intangible assets to be recagnised
separate from goodwili

P) Trade and other recelvables

Trade and other receivablas are recogm'sed mitially at fair value, which 1s deemed to be the transaction pnce

Subsequently, trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effactive interest method,
less any provision for impairment

q} Cash
Cash and cash equivalents compnses cash balances and money market deposits Bank overdrafts that ara

repayable on demand and form an mtegral part of the Group's cash management are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows

r} Share capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the 13sue of ordinary shares are
recognisad as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects

Share premium

The share premium account reprasents tha amount subscnbed for share capital in excess of nominal value, less
any costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares

Retainad deficit

The retained deficit represents the cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the Income Statament
Dividends

Dwidends on ordinary share capital are recognised as a liability in the Group's financial statements in the perrod in
which they are declared In the case of intenm dividends, these are considered to be declared when they are paid
and in the case of final divdends these are declared when authorised by the shareholders

8) Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations {0 pay for goods or services that have been acquired In the ordinary course of
business fram suppliers Trade payables are recognised Initially at fair vaiue and subsequently measured at
amortised cost Trade payables are classified as current liabilihes If payment is due within one year or less,
ctherwise they are presented as non-current habilitios

t) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised mitially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently
carned at amortised cost Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value i1s recognised in the Income Stalement over the penod of the barrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees pad on the establishment of loan facites are recogmsed as transachion costs of the loan to the extent that it
1s probable that some or all of the faciity will be drawn down [ this case, the fee 1s deferred until the draw-down
occurs To tha extent there 1s no evidence that it 1s probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the

fee I1s capitalised as a pre-paymaent for iquidity seraces and amortised over the pertod of the facility to which it
relates

18




This is Global Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
1) Accounting policies {continued)

u} Finance income and expense

Finance tncome comprises interest received on cash balances

Finance expense comprses interest payabla on borrowings, amortisation and wrte off of debt 1ssuance costs and
the unwinding of the discount on non-curnent provisions

Interest 15 recognised m profit or loss as # accrues using the effective interest rate Interest payable on
borrawings inclizdes a charga n respect of atinbutable transaction costs, which are recogrused in prafit or loss
over the perod of the borrowings on an effective interest basis

v) Financial instruments

A financial instrument 1s inibally recognised at fair value on the Statement of Financial Position when the entity
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the mstrument A financiat instrument 1s derecognised when the
contractual nghts to the cash fiows expira or substantively all nsks and rewards of ownership are transferrad A
financral rability 1s derecognised when the obligaton specified in the contract is discharged, cancalied or expires

Subsaquent to inital racognition, ail financlal labiites are stated at amortised cost using the effective interast
methed

w) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expanse for the period comprises current and defemed tax Tax is recognised in the Income Statement,
except to the extant that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity In this
case, the tax 15 also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly 'n equity, respectively.

The current income tax charga s calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date Management perodically evatuates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax ragulation 13 subject o intarpretation it establishes provisions where appropnate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authonties

Deferred income tax 1s recogmsed on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and liabiities
and their carrying amounts in the Statement of Financial Posiion However, deferred tax liabilities are not
récognised if they anse fram the inihat recognition of goodwill Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it anses
from initial recognition of an asset or iability in a transaction other than a business combnation that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss Deferred income tax 18 determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Statament of Financial Position date and
are expected to apply when the related dafermed mcome tax asse! is realised o the deferred income tax liabitity is
sattied

Deferred income tax assels are recogmsed only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary diffarences can be utifised

Deferred income tax lisbiktes are prowided on taxable temporary differences ansing from nvestments in
subsidiaries, except for defarred ncome tax llabihies where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
15 controlled by the Group and it 1s probabie that the temporary differance will not reverse in the foreseeable
future

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductble temporary differences ansing from investments in
subsidianes only to the extent that it 1s probable the temporary diffarence will reverse in the future and there 15
sufficient taxable profit avanlable agamst which the temporary diffarence can be utilised Deferred income tax
assets and liabilitios are offset when there s a legally enforcaable right to offset current tax assets against currant
tax Heblities and when the deferred income taxes assels and liabllities refate to Income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxabie entity or different taxabla entities where there is an intention to seitle
the balances on a net basis

x) Employee banefits
Short tarm employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related sarvice Is provided A liability (s recognised for the
amount expected to be pad if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past sarvice provided by the smployee and the obligation can be estimated reliably

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenaver an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earier of the following dates (a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits, and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructunng that 18 within the scope of IAS 37
Provisions, contingen! habilittes and contingent assets (“IAS 37") and involves the paymeni of termination benefits
in the case of an offer mads to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer Benefits faling due more than 1 year after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to their present value
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
1 Accounting policies {continued)

x) Employee bensefits (continued)

Defined contribution pension schema

The Group operates employee ophonal stakeholder retirement and death benefit schemes. Both employee and
employers are required to make contributions with the employers’ contributions for each employee determined by
the level of contribution made by the employee and the employee's length of service within the Group or
subsidlary company The employer's contnbutions are charged to profit and loss in the year in which the
contributions are due

Defined banefit pension scheme

The Group operates a defined benafit pension scheme which requires contnbutions te be made to separately
admiristered funds The cost of providing benefits under the plan 1s determined using an independent actuanal
valuation This is based on the projected unit credit mathod and 1s recogrised n accordance with the advice of a
qualified actuary Past service costs resultng from enhanced benefits are recogmised on a straight-line basts over
the vesting period or immediataly If the benefits have vested

Re-maasurement gans and losses, and taxation thereon, are recognised In other comprehansive ncome and are
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods, Re-measurements compnse actuanal gains and losses, the
return on plan asseats {(excluding amounts included In net interest) and changes in the amount of any asset
restrictons Actuanal gains and losses may result from differences between the actuanal assumptions underlying

the plan liabilities and actual experience during the year or changes in the assumptions used in the valuation of
the plan habilites

The defined benefit liability or assat recognised In the Statement of Financial Position {or Balance Sheet)
compnses the present value of the benefit obligation using a discount rate based on appropriate igh quality
corporate bonds, at the reporting date, minus any past service costs not yet recognised, minus the far vatue of
the plan assets, If any, at the reporting date Where the plan 15 in surplus, the asset recognised is imited to the
amount which the Group expects to recover by way of refunds or reduction in future contributions

y) Share based payments

The Group has a long term incentive share scheme undsr which it makes equity-settied share-based payments to
eligible employeas The cost of equity-seltled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of
grant and racogrised as an expense over the vasting period, which ends on the date on which the employeas
bacome fully entitied to the reward

Farr value 1s estimated using appropnate models for the particular awards under consideration In valuing equity
settiod transactions, no account is taken of any vasting conditions, other than the performance conditions finked to
the prica of the shares of the Company (market conditions) Any other conditions which are required to be metin
order for an employee to become fully entitied to an award are considered to be non-vesting conditions These are
also taken intc account In datermining the grant date fair vaiue

No expense 1s recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions where
vesting 1s condiional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treatad as vesting wrespective of whethar
or not the market or non-vasting condition 18 satisfied, provided that all othar performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied

At aach reporting data before vesting, the cumulative expense is calculated, representing the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and management's best estimate of the number of the achieverment ar otherwrse of
non-market vesting conditions and of the number of equity instruments that will uitmately vest or, in the case aof an
instrument subject to a market condition, be treated as vesting The movement in cumuiative expense since the
previous reporting date 18 recognised n the Income Statement, with a corresponding entry in equity

Where the terms of an equity-settled payments award are modified or a new award is designated as replacing a
cancelied or settled award, the cost based on the onginal award terms continues to be recognised over the
origina) vestng penod |n addition, an expense 18 recognised avar the remamder of tha new vesting pernod for the
incremental fair value of the modification, based on the difference between the farr value of orniginal award and the

fair value of the modified award, both as measured at the date of modification No reduction 1 recognised If this
differance Is negative

Where an equity-sattied award i1s cancelled (where non-vesting conditions within the controi of either the entity or
the employee are not maet), it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recogrised for the award 1s expensed immediately Any compensation paid up to the fair value of the award at the
cancallation or settlement date 1s deducted from equity, with any axcess over fair value being treated as an
expense In the Inccme Statement
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

z) Provisions

Provisions for onerous Ieases, restructunng costs, legal clams and other future costs are recognised when

- the Group has a present legal ¢r constructive cbliigation as a result of past events,
- it s probable that an outflow of resources will be required ta settle the abligation, and
- the amount has been reliably estimated

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses Provisions are measured at the present velue of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pra-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the obhigation

aa) Revenue rocognition
Revenue, which 1s stated excluding any value added tax, agency commisstons and trade discounts

Revenue 18 recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that the economic banefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be rehably measured Key classes of revenue are recognised on the following basis

Radio adverhsing Date of broadcast

Sponsorship Over the term of the contract
Internet revenue Ovar the term of the contract
Transmission fees Over the term of the contract
Production of adverts On date of release to clients
Enterprise revenue On agreed settlement with all parties
CO ravanue On sate of CD

Revenue on barter transactions 1s racogmised only when the goods or services baing exchanged are of a similar
nature

bb) Leases
The Group 1s both a lessor and lessae of property, plant and equipment

Leases where the lessor retains substantially ali the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating
leases Operating lease rental expenditurefincome 18 charged to the income Statement on a straight-ine basis
over the lease tarm

Lease incentives are recorded as a hability and then recognised over the lease term on straight-ing basis in the
Income Statement as a reducton of rental expense

cc)  Falr value measurement

A number of the Group’s accounting palicias and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabihes Set out below 15 an analysis of the vaiuation methed of the
Group's financial instruments

Tha diffarent levels in the far valua hierarchy have been defined as follows

« Level 1 quoted {unadjusted) prices In active markets for identical assets or liabilitias

* Lovei 2 inputs cther than quoted prices included within level 1 that are cbservable, for the asset or
lability, either directly {t @ as pnces) or indirectly (1 @ dertved from prices)

*Lavel 3 inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observabie market data (unobservable
inputs)

The Group has no assets or labilities whers fair values have been determined for measurement purposes
Borrowings (level 3)

Borrowings, as disclosed in note 16 and note 20, 1s calculated as the present vaiue of the estimated future cash
flows based on the terms and matunty the lcan and using market Interest rates as applicable for a similar
instrument at the measurement date

dd) Financlal guarantee contracts

Where the Group enters Inio financia! guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies
within the Group, the Group considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for tham as such In
this respect, the Group treats the guarantee contact as a contingent habibty untl as such time as it bacomes
probabtle that the Group will be required to make a payment under the guarantea
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
2 Operating segments

The Group's chief operating decision maker has been dentfied as the board of direclors The beard of diractors
review the Group's internal reporting on a monthly basis In order to assess performance and allocate resources

Management has determined the opsrating segments based cn the reports used by the board The beard mainly
assesses parformance based on adjusted EBITDA

The Group has ane reportable segment being commercial radio broadcasting i the United Kingdom Other
operations includes evants, advertising commission, television and ¢d safes None of these segments met the
quantitative thresholds for reportable segments In the 2015 or 2016 financiatl years.

The Group's operations are virtually all completed in the United Kingdom, the Group's operations outside the
United Kingdom are not significant

All transactions between segments are completed on an arms-length basis

The Group 18 not rellant on any major customers and no single customer provides more than ten percent of Group
revanue

Cormmeds radla troadcastng Tlner operations Tolsi
Yoot anded 31 March Yo ¢nded 31 March vaar ended 31 March “es ended 31 #wch Year ended 33 Mmch Yo ended 31 March
2018 2615 e 2012 e W03
000 £ L1000 00D ok ED00
Tolai revenue 154 683 2444 21 348 1 184 178,247 5,105
i WEOT YR e - . . .
Rivesiua from eemal customon Teaw 1Y) Y T Tre T ELCF]
Cusect costs 9 714 150370
Ceann pioht 228,633 214 682
Opeioting grpshies (15 99¢) 1142 287
Agjueted EEITOA Tom7 an
Other expermas 14414) {15 880
Opetating greld 00,123 5 5§15
Net fnpncy evpsngs (Fosey 192 Dary
Shavs of proM of agui p-secounied meestars it of 123 272 583
Loss bofora inzaion m w

3 Adjusted EBITDA

Yearended 31 Year ended 31
March 2016 March 2015

£000 £'000
Operating profit 60,123 56,515
Depreciation of property, plant and aquipment 4,141 3,225
Amortisation of intangibles 6,365 2,708
Other operating expenses 4,908 9,247
Adjusted EBITDA 74,5637 72,395

4 Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting)

Year ended 31  Year anded 31
March 2016 March 2015

£'000 £:000
Amortisation of intangible assets 5,365 2,708
Loss on disposal of intangible assets - 15
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4141 3,925
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 7
Oparating lease rentals
-{and and buiidings 5518 5,036
- motor vehicles and other leases 1,296 673
Lease income recewed {111} (111)
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4 Opaerating profit {continued)

Auditors' remuneration for audit and non-audit services dunng the year was

Year ended 3t  Year ended 31
March 2016 March 2015
£000 £'000
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and ils associates for the
audit of the Company's annual financial statements 89 35
Fees payable to the Group's auditor and s associates 1n respect of
The auditing of financial statements of associates of the Group 06 150
pursuant to lagisiation
Cther services pursuant to tegistation 17 7
Taxation compliance gervices 2 1
All taxation advisory services not included above €8 151
Al other services 33 60

§ Employees

The avarage number of people empioyed by the Graup (including directors) dunng the year was as follows

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2016 March 2015

Number Number
Sales 634 815
Programming 332 373
Admynistration 233 222
1,249 1 !210

The aggregate remuneration costs of these employees ware as foliows

Year eanded 31

Year ended 31

March 20186 March 20156
E'000 £'000
Wages and salarnes 62,896 82,452
Sceial sacunty costs 8,708 6,805
Contributions to dafined benefit pension schemes 333 438
Contributions to defined contnbution pension schemes 1,462 1,243
71,398 70,938
8 Directors
The remuneration costs of the Graup's directors were
Yoar endad 31 Your ended 21
March 2018 March 2015
£°000 £'000
Remuneraticn 10,515 5,301
Contributians to defined contnbution pensicn schemes 88 98
10,603 5,397
. Numbar Number
Number of directors to whom retirament benefits accrue 3 3
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8 Directors (continued)

The remuneration of the highest pad director was

Aggregate emoluments

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2016 March 2015
£000 £'000
7,272 2,183
7,272 2,163

The amounts disclosed above represent the remuneration for the qualifying services of the directors of the Group

IAS 24 Related party transactions ('IAS 24") requires the Group to disclose all transactions and outstanding
balances with the Group's key management personnel 1AS 24 defines key management personnel as those
persons having authonty and responsibility for planning, directing and controling the activities of the entity,
directly or indirectly, including any director {(whether executive or otherwise) of that entity

The key management personnel who are responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the

Group are the Group's directors

Dunng the year a number of directors ware granted loans In relation to a cash-settled share-based payment
arrangement The loans are due for repayment on the settlement of the scheme The loan balances outstanding

are

Loans to directors tn relation to cash-settied share
based payment arrangement

7 Finance Income

Bank interest receivable
Interest on pension scheme assets

[} Finance expense

interest payabie on bank loans and overdrafts
Interest payable on other loans

Movement in fair value adjustments on barrowings
Amortisation of debt 1ssue costs

Interast on pension scheme habilites

Yearended 31  Year ended 31
March 2018 March 2015
£'000 £000

375 375

Year endod 31 Year ended 31
March 2016 March 2015
£°000 £:000

80 179

1,657 1,858

1,637 2,037

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2016 March 2015
£000 £000

4,873 2,745
683,782 70,386
1,681 19,705

4562 592

1,403 1,550
72,301 94,978
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9. incoma tax credit

(¢) Analysis of tax credit in the perlod

Current tax expense

UK corporation tax on the loss for the year
Adjustments in raspect of prior years
Total current tax expense

Deferred tax credit
Ongination and reversal of tamporary differences
Adjustments in respeci of pnor years

Total defarrad tax credit

Income tax cradit

(b) Factors affecting the tax credit In the period

Lose before bafore tax

Loss before tax multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax of
20% (2015 21%)

Effects of

Expenses not deductiblo for tax purposes

Interest expanse not deductible for tax purposes
{Recegniticn) / non recognition of deferred tax on temporary
differences

Profit on disposal of property

Specal factors affecting joint-ventures and associates
UK Dividend income from associates

Effects of changes in tax rates

Adjustments in respect of prior years

Income tax credit

{c) Factors that may affect future tax charge

Year anded 31

Year ended 31

March 2016 March 2015
£'000 £'000

176 297

{116) (207)

&80 a0

(2,003) {3,421)
(2,003} (3,421}
{1,843) {3,331}
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2016 March 2015
£'000 £000
{9,868) {35.843)
(1,974) (7.527)

1,668 1930

45 546

(1,848) 2,008

- (213}

19 73

(154) {195)

316 258

{116) {209)
{1,943) {3,331)

The standard rate of corporation tax n the UK changad from 21% to 20% with effect from 1 Apdl 2015
Accordingty, the effective rate of 20% has been used in the computation of current tax

Further changes to the UK Comporation tax system were announced in the Summer 2015 Budget Statement The
2015 Finance Act includes legisiation to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from 20% to 19% from 1 Aprnl
2017, and then 1o reduce the corporation tax rate further from 19% to 18% from 1 April 2020

The reduction in tax rates was substantivaly enacted on 26 October 2015 and, therefore a tax rate of 18% has
been used in these financial statements to measure the deferred tax assets and liabidhigs

In the 2016 budget on 16 March 2016 it was announced that from 1 Aprii 2020 the corporation tax rate would
decrease to 17% The 2016 budget had not beaen substantively enactad at the raparting date
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10 Intangible assets

Software Radio

costs Licencesa Goodwill Total

£'000 £'000 E'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 Aprit 2015 17,268 1,476 832,413 851,157
Acquisitions - 11,556 371 11,927
Additions 6,223 - - 6,223
Digposals (3,737) - - (3,737)
At 31 March 2016 19,754 13,032 632,784 665,570
Amortisation and Impairment
At 1 April 2015 9,317 685 315,977 325,989
Charge for the year 4,231 1,134 - 5,365
Disposals (3,737) - - (3,737)
At 31 March 2016 9,811 - 1,829 315,977 327 617
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 9,943 11,203 318,807 337,863

Software Radio

costs Licences Goodwlill Total

£'000 £'000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2014 13,747 1.476 632,429 647,652
Acquisitions - - (18) (16)
Additions 6,281 - - 8,291
Disposals (2,770} - - (2,770)
At 31 March 2015 17,268 1,476 632,413 661.157
Amortisation and impalrment
At1 Apnil 2014 9,498 561 315,977 326,036
Charge for the year 2,574 134 - 2,708
Disposals (2 755} - - {2,755}
At 31 March 2015 9,317 685 315,877 325,989
Net book value
At 1 Apnit 2014 4,249 915 316,452 321,616
At 31 March 2015 7,851 781 316,436 325,168

On the acguisition of Juice Holdco Limited the Group acquired a radio licence with a value of £11 5m At 31 March
2016 the carrying value of the radio licance was £9 Om and it had a remasning useful economic life of 5 years

The Group compietes an impairment review of goodwiil annually In accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of assets

. {"|1AS 36") the Group has complsted a review of its ocperations and determined that the Group has one cash

generating unit ("CGU"), being the Commercial Radio Broadcasting CGU, and for the purposes of testing for
impairment the Group's entire goodwill is allocated te this CGU

The Group estmates the recoverable amount of a CGU using a value in use model by projecting pre-tax cash
flows for the next five years together with a terminal value using a long term growth rate The key assumptions
underpinning the recovarable amounts of the CGUSs tested for impawment are forecast revenue and EBITDA

The five year plans used in the mpament models are based on management's past experionce and future
expectations of performance

The key assumptions used for alt matenal CGUs are a pre-tax discount rate of § 6% (2015 8 1%), a short to
medium term growth rate of 3% (2015 3%), and a long term growth rate of 3% (2015 3%)

The pre-tax discount rate used 15 denved from a weighted average cost of capital ("WACC") calculatron for the
Group and benchmarked agalnst similar organisations aperating within the sector The iong term growth rate used
does not exceed the average for the sector
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10 Intangible assets (continued)

The total recoverable amouni in respect of goodwili, as assessed by man'agement using the above assumptions,
15 greater that the carrying amount and therefore no impairment charge has been booked

Managemant congider that it is not reasonably possible for the assumptons to change so significantly as to

alimnate the excess

11 Property, plant and equipment

Cost

Al 1 Apnl 2015
Additons
Disposals

At 31 March 2016

Depraciation

At 1 Apnl 2015
Charge for the year
Disposais

At 31 March 2016

Not book value
At 31 March 2016

Cost

At 1 Apri 2014
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2015

Deproclation

At 1 Apnl 2014
Charge for the year
Drsposals

At 31 March 2015

Net hook valug
At 1 Apnl 2014

At 31 March 2015

Transmittars, fixtures

and technical
Land and builldings equipment Total
£°000 £'000 £'000
16,605 6,391 22,998
2,543 6,488 9,031
{1,428) (4,554) (5.882)
17,720 8,325 26045
801 24978 3.779
1,600 2,541 4,141
(1.428) (4 554) (5.982)
973 B85 1,838
16,747 7,360 24,107
Transmitters, fixtures
and technical
tand and bulldings equipmont Total
E£'000 £'C00 E’000
18,242 8,453 26,696
3,442 1.758 5,200
{5079) (3,820 {8,898)
16.605 B8,3M 22,996
3,470 §,175 8,645
2,314 1,611 3,825
(4,983} (3,808) (8,791)
801 2,978 3,779
14 772 3,278 18 050
15,804 3413 19,217
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ia.

Equity accounted investments

Cost
At 1 Apnil 2015
Additions

(Decrease)/increase in equity accounted investments

At 31 March 2016

jnvestments in Investments in .

Joint ventures associates Total
£'000 £'000 £'000

804 238 842
(292) 206 {86)

312 444 756

Investments In  Investments in

Joint ventures assoclates Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 April 2014 569 3 880
Additions a7 - 67
Decrease in equity accounted Investments {32) 73 {105)
At 31 March 2015 604 238 B42
The Group's Investments in joint venturaes are
Name Country % Ownership
EG Digital Limited UK 450
The Digital Radio Group (London) Limited UK 4465
Now Digital (East Mudlands) Limited UK 275
The Group's Investments in assoclates are
Name Country % Ownership
Wildstar Records Linuted UK 500
CE Digital Limited UK 500
Composed Limited UK 500
13 Investments
Invastments Total
£'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2015 488 488
Additions 5,600 5,600
At 31 March 2018 8,088 6,088
Provislan for impairment
At 1 Apni 2015 o8 308
At 31 March 2016 308 308
Net boak value
At 31 March 2018 5,780 5,780

Duning the year the Group mada an Investment in a digital audio advertising selution provider
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13 investments {continuad)

Investments Total
£'000 £000
Cest
At 1 April 2014 488 488
At 31 March 2015 488 488
Provision for impalrment
At 1 Apnl 2014 308 308
At 31 March 2015 308 308
Net book value
At 1 Apnl 2014 180 160
At 31 March 2015 180 180
14. Trade and other receivables .
31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014
2018 2015
£'000 £'000 £000
Gross trade recewvables 34,087 28.426 34878
Less provision for impaiment {131} {379) {168)
33,938 28,047 34,480
Other dabtors 3,838 5,637 3,920
Prepayments and accrued income 8,573 8,399 10,847
48,147 42.083 45,347
The following table details the movements in the provision for the impaiment of trade recevables
31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014
2018 2015
£'000 £'000 £'000
Baiance at the beginning of the year 379 196 188
Movemant In provision {248) 183 8
Balance at the end of the year 131 379 106

The carrying value of trade and other receivables is a reasonahie approximation of the fair value of trade and

,other recavables

There are no matenal overdue trade receivables that have not been provided agamst

16. Trade and other payables

31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014
2016 2015

£'000 £'000 £'000
Trade payables 7,196 8,435 B,481
Other taxes and social secunty costs 8,283 6,809 7,589
Other creditors 3,693 3.969 4,848
Accruals and deferred income 30,387 28,020 25,008
49 548 47 233 51,014

The carrying value of trade and other payables 1s a reasonable approximation of the fair value of trade and other

payables -
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16 Borrowings

Current 31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014
2016 2015
£'000 £'000 £'000
Bank loans and overdrafts 25,000 25,000 10,000
Accrued interest 17,287 15,462 19,169
42,297 40,462 20,168
Non-current 31 March 31 March 1 Apni 2014
2016 2015
£'000 £'000 £'000
Bank loans 142,736 167,274 34,232
Other loans 678,137 876,340 813,240
_B20,872 843,614 847,472
The nominal value of the Group's berrowings at each reporting date 15 as follows
31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014
2018 2015
£000 £'000 £000
Accrued interest 17,297 15,482 19,169
Senior term loan notes 168,750 193,750 45,000
Fixed rate loan notes 89,573 129,339 112,488
Sharehoider loan notes 259,654 224,916 185,679
Connected party loan 1 84,045 75,673 213 205
Connected party loan 2 - 11,671 76,254
Loan from parent entity 204,803 205,440 206,137
833,202 856 251 867,813
The fair value of the Group’s borrowings at each reporhing date 1s as foilows
31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014
2016 2015
£'000 £'000 £000
Accrued interest ) 17,297 15,462 19,169
Sanior term loan notes 167,735 192,274 44,232
Fixed rate loan notes 122,945 160,048 133,090
Sharehelder loan notes 309,465 278,317 231,437
Connected party loan 1 90,485 82,848 225,035
Connected party loan 2 - 12,566 79,258
Loan from parent entity 155,242 142,561 144,420
863,169 884,076 876 641
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16 Borrowings (continued)
The interest rates on the Group’s borrowings are as follows

Intarest ratas on varlable lntgrest barrowings

Senjor tarm loan notes
Connacted party loan 1
Connected party loan 2

Intarest rates on flxed Interest borrowings

Fixed rate loan notas
Shareholder loan notes
Loan from parent entity

Welghted average Interest rate on borrowings

The Group's borrowings have the followsng matunty profile

Less than one year
Two to five years
Over five years

Less interest cash fiows
Senior term notes

Fixed rate loan notes
Shareholder loan notes
Connected party loan 1
Connected party loan 2
Loan from parant entity

Total principal cash flows

31 March 31 March 1 Apnit 2014
2018 2015
% above % above % above
LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR
2.16% 2 15% 215%
10.50% 10 50% 10 50%
- 10 00% 10 00%
31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014
2016 2015
Fixed rate Fixed rata Fixed rate
15.00% 15 00% 15 00%
16 00% 15 00% 15 00%
0 00% 0 00% 0 00%
8 59% 8 10% 9 30%
31 March 31 March 1 April 2014
2016 2016
£000 £'000 £000
109,656 108,210 108,018
948,099 1,032,428 865,977
- - 206,137
1,057,766 1,140,638 1,180,132
{12,722) {17,726) {1,338)
(72,511) (82,454) (67,481}
{102,125) {143,384) (117.347)
{37,195) {35,583) (D4,042)
- (5.240) {32,110)
833,202 858,251 857,813

The semor tenm notes are secured by fixed and floating charges over the assets of the Group
The Group has undrawn commtted borrowing fachtes of £10 miflion at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015 £10

mitlton}
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17 Provisions

Onerous
lease
' provision Totel
£'000 £'000
At 1 Apnl 2014 4,653 4,653
Additions 664 664
Utlised dunng the year {1,349) (1,349)
Released dunng the year (234) (234)
At 31 March 2015 3,734 3,734
Additions 13 13
Acquired duning the year 26 286
Utihsed duning the year (202) {202)
Released during the year {1,014) {1,014)
At 31 March 2016 _2,657 2,657
The breakdown of provisions betwesn current and non—current 1s as follows®
- 31 March 31 March 1 Aprii 2014
2016 2015
£000 £'000 £'000
Current 1,221 101 1,124
Non-current 1,336 2,723 3,529
Total 2,667 3,734 4653

The onerous lease provision Is a provigion for vacant office and studio space that the Group has leased but 1s not
currently using The provision 1s calculated as the difference between the total future lease payments less any
amounts expacted to be recovered by sub-leasing the space There are inherent uncertainbies i measunng the

provisions of the future cutflows
18 Deferred tax

Property planl and

Financral Pensicn
eguipment and Tax [osses nstruments surplus Other Totat
mtangible assets
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
At 31 March 2015 428 - 4,569 (888) 1.005 5118
Deferred tax assats 428 - 17,145 - 1.006 18,678
Deferred tax liabillies - - (12.578) {s88) {13 462}
Al 31 March 2015 428 - 4,560 (886) 1 005 5116
Credit/(change) to the iIncome
statement 1627 elel: ] a4 LY:] (878) 2003
Recognised in other R R . 204 . 204
comprehensive income
Acquired in the year (2,038} - - - . (2.038)
At 31 March 2016 317 o8 4,663 (833) 30 5,285
Deferrad tax assets 2,218 |08 14,086 - a0 17,248
Deferred tax llabllities {1,898} - {8,432} {633} - {11,963}
At 31 March 2018 M7 208 4,663 isa:n 30 5,285
At 1 Apnl 2014 - el 842 (819) 1123 1170
Deterred tax assels - 224 13,803 495 1123 15 445
Deferrad tax iabiities - - (12 961} (3,314} - {14 275)
AL 1 April 2014 - 224 842 (819} 1123 1,170
Credit/(charge) to the income
statement 428 {224) 3827 (592) {118) 3421
Recogmsed in othar
comprehenslve income ; i ° 525 - 525
At 31 March 2015 428 - 4,580 @8_6} 1,005 5,116
e —— )
Delerrad iex assets 428 - 17,145 . 10086 18,578
Deterrad lax kabilties - - (12 578} {886} - {13.462)
At 31 Mareh 2815 428 - 4,569 {886} 1,005 5116
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18 Deferred tax {continued)

Daferred tax 1s provided in full on taxable temporary diffarences under the liability method using applcable tax
rates Deferred tex assets and lisbilites are only offset where there 15 a legally enforceabla night of offset and
thera is an intention to setila the balances net

The following table hists the Group’s unrecognised deferred tax assets
31 March 31 March

2014 2015

E'000 £'000

Proparty, plant and equiprnen! 5,540 7 234
Taxlosses 15,116 17 529
Other " 4
20,687 24767

These potential deferred tax assets have not been recagnised on the basss that it is not sufficiently certain when
taxable profits that can be utitised to absorty the raversal of the temporary difference will be madg in the futtire

18 Share capital

31 March 3t March 1 Apnl 2014

2016 2015
£ £ £
Issued, callad up and fully pald
Ordinary shares of £1 49,166,981 1 1
49,168,981 1 1

During the year £43,1686,980 of loans were converted to 49,166,680 ordinary £1 shares which were 1ssued, called
up and fully paid

20. Funding and financlal risk management

Financlal risk management

The Group holds and uses financial instruments to finance its operations and to manage its interest rate and
hquidity risks Tha Group primarnily finances its operations uging share capital, revenue and borrowings

The Group's activities expose it to a vanety of financial nsks market risk (interest rate risk and foreign exchange
nsk), credit nsk and liquidhty nsk

The Group 1s pnmarily funded by debt Bank debt has been reduced during the year The Group's operations are
cash generative, and a general exposure to hquidity nsk 18 considered to be low The Group monitors performance
against its banking covenants on a quarterly basis

The Group does not engage n frading or spaculative activities using denvative financial Insiruments
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure
Market risk

Market nisk 15 the nsk that changes in prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect the
Group's tncome or the value of its holdings of financial instruments

Intarest rate nsk

Interest rate nisk 1s the nsk of a change in the Group's cash flows due to a change in interast rates The Group has
both fixed rate and floating rate borowings The ratio of fixed to fioating rate borrowings 1s monitered on an
ongoing basis to ensure that the Group's 18 not too exposed to vanabilty in interest rates

Foreign exchange nsk

Foreign exchange nsk 1s the risk of a change in the Group's cash flows due te a change it foreign currency
exchange rate The vast mejonty of the Group's income and expendtiture is in pound Sterling therefore the Group
15 not exposad to significant foreign exchange risk
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20. Funding and financlal risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Credit nsk

Credit nisk is the nisk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counter party to a financlal Instrument fals to
meat its contractual ebligations, and anses pancipally from the Group's recetvables from customers

The directors consider the Group's credit nsk from cash, cash equivalents and deposits to be low as the Group
only entars transactons with banks of financial Institulions with a credit rating of A or above

The Group has policies in place to manage potential credit nsk from trade receivables  The Group mitigates the
nisk of paymant dafault by ts customers by the use of trade credit insurance for high value customers Customer
cradit terms are determined using independent ratings agency data and regularly updated to refiect any changes
in customer crcumstances or trading condibons Trade recewables are reviewed an a regular basis by the
Group's credit contro! department tc ensure debts are racovered in full

The directors do not expect any significant losses of receivables that have not been provided for
Liqutcity nsk

Liquidity nisk 1s the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due The
Group's finance department regulary monitors forecasts of the Group’s iquidity requirements to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meet operatonal neads

Capital Management

The Group reliles on capital for organic growth The Group defines capital as equity as shown in the Statement of
Finanaiai Position plus net debt (total borrowings less cash) and seeks to achieve an acceptable retum on gross
capital

The Group manages its capial structure using & number of measures and taking tnto account its future strategic
plans Such measures Include ensuring the Group maintains sufficient iquidity from the cash that the Group has
generated from operations

Fair value
Financial assets comprse trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents
Financial habittes compnse irade and other payables and borrowings

The falr value of trade and other recevables, cash and cash eguivalents and trade and cther payables Is not
matenally different from therr carrying value

The following table shows the fair value of borrowings, including their value in tha farr value hierarchy

Fair value 31 March 31 March 1 April 2014

hierarchy 2016 2015
£'000 £000 £'000
Senior tarm notes Level 3 187,735 192,274 44,232
Fixed rate loan notes Lavel 3 122,946 160,048 133,080
Shareholder loan notes Level 3 309,465 278,317 231,437
Connected party 'oan 1 Level 3 90,485 B2,848 225,035
Connacted party loan 2 Level 3 - 12,566 79,258
Loan from parent entity Level 3 156,242 142,561 144,420
845 872 888,614 857,472
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21 Non-controliing Interests

Non- Total
controlling
interosts
£'000 E'000
At 1 Aprl 2015 1,180 1,180
Share of profit after taxation for the year 1477 1177
Dindends paid to minonty interests {1.143) {1,143)
At 31 March 2016 1,214 1,214
Non- , Total
controlling
Intereats
£'000 £'000
At 1 Apni 2014 960 880
Share of profit after taxation for the year 1,107 1,107
Purchase of minonty interests (89) (69)
Increase in minority interests 378 376
Dividends paid to minority interests {1,194) {1 194)
At 31 March 2015 1,180 1,180
22, Commitmeants and contingencles
The Group's commitmants under non-cancellable operating leases are set out below
3t March 31 March
2016 2015
£000 £'000
Land and bulldings
Within one year 4,242 4470
Betwean two and five years 14,538 15,776
Afer five years 8,663 8,562
24,341 28 808
31 March 31 March
2016 2015
£'000 £'000
Motor vehicles and equipment
Within one year e87 1.253
Betwaen two and five years 958 1,407
Aher five years - -
1,942 2,680
The Group's future minimum lease rental income expected to be received under non-cancellable operating leases
is as follows
31 March 31 March
2016 2015
£'0Q0 £'000
Lease rental iIncome
Within one year 26 -
Between two and fiva years 384 -
After five yoars 143 -
623 -

The Group leases properly, metor vehiclas and office equipment The Group's leases do not include any matenal

contingent lease payments, purchase options, escalation clauses or restnction clauses
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23. Related party transactions

During the year the Group traded with Hs associates, joint ventures and with entittes with common control to the
Group All transactions were in the normal course of business and priced under normal trade terms

The Company's immediate parent company 1s Global Radio Group Limited {Jersey) Details of loans outstanding
with this entity are given in note 16

Digital Radio Group (London) Limited operates a digiiai radio multiplex and during the year the Group paid
£105,000 (2015 £133,000) to this company for transmission services The Group had an cutstanding balance of
£ril at 31 March 2016 (2015 £9,000)

Radio Centre Limited 1s a trade body promoting commercial radio to advertisers Radio Centre Limited ss funded
by levies paid by the commercial radio industry in the UK based on volumes of advertising revenus Dunng the
year the Group paid £1,371,000 (2015 £1,746,000) in levies to Radio Centre Limitad and had an cutstanding
balance of £ml at 31 March 2016 (2015 £nil)

CE Digitel operates three local digital radio multiplexes During the year the Group paid £2,755,000 (2015
£2.659,000) to CE Digital in respect of transmission services and recerved £ml (2015 £100,000) in respect of

legal expertse and engineenng tme The Group had an outstanding balance of £ni! at 31 March 2616 (2015
£633,000)

Now Digital East Midlands Limited, an associate of the Group, operates digital radio multiplexes and dunng the
yaar the Company pald £653,000 (2015 £765,000) to this company for transmission services The Group had an
outstanding creditor of £nil at 31 March 2016 (2015 £65,000)

Dunng the year a numbaer of Directors were granted loans in relation to a cash-settlad share based payment
arrangement The loans are due for repayment on the settlement of the scheme (see note 25) The loan balances
totalled £374,770 at 31 March 2016 (2015 £374,770)

During the year the Group had a number of recharge accounts with vanous members of the Global Entertainment
and Talent Group, with whom the Group shares a Dwector As at 31 March 2018 the outstanding debtor was
£663,000 (2015 £1,848,000) This has been fully repaid since the year end During the year the Group charged
the Giobal Entertainment and Talent Group £40,000 (2015 £40,000) in respect of occupancy, and Global
Entertainment and Talent Group charged the Group £60,000 (2015 £60,000) in respect of consultancy

The Group considers the directors to be key management personne! Related party transactions with key
managament personnel have been disclosed in note &

In the opinion of the Diractors, there were no other related party transactions dunng the year
24. Business combinations

On 8 October 2015 the Group acyuired the entire share capitat {(and 100% of the voting nghts) of Juice Holdco

Limited through its subsidiary Global Radio Holdings Limited Juice Holdeo Limuted was a radio broadcaster in
Liverpool

The pnmary reason for the acquisiion was the purchase of a radio licence, shown below In intangibles, to expand
the Group s Capital FM racio station to the Liverpooi area The goodwill has besn allocated to the Commercial
Radio Broadcasting cash generating unit None of the purchased goodwill 1s deductble for tax purposes

The main factor leading to the recognition of goodwill was the expected addtional advertising revenue and the
expected operational efficiencies through economies of scale

The details of the fair value of iIdentifiable assets and labilities acquired, purchase consideration and goodwill are
as foliows

Fair value

£'000
Intangible assets 11,656
Deferred tax asset - 43
Trade and other receiwvabies 338
Cash 585

Trade and other payables (5,373)
Provisions (28)

Deferred tax liabtity {2,081}
Net assets acquired 5049
Goodwiil 371
Total consideration _ 5,420
Satisfled by’ 5,420
Cash 5,420
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24 Business combinations {(continued)

There were farr value adjustments to property, plant and eguipment (decrease of £199,000) to wnte off essets
which had no value to the Group, to intangiile assets {an increase of £356,000 to the acquired radio hcence), to
recognise a deferred tax asset (£43,000) end to recognise a deferred tax flability {£64,000) for the acquired
intangsble assets

The total consudaration was paid in full on the acquisihon of Juice Holdco Limited and there was no deferred
consideration in relation 1o the transaction

Acquisition retated costs of £472,000 have been charged to admmistration expenses in the Income Statement for
the yaar endad 31 March 2018

Since the acqursition date Juice Holdco Limited has contnbuted £1,487,000 1o the Group revenue If the
acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2015 the contribution to Group revenue would have been £2,387,000

25  Share-based payments
The Group cpearates cash-settled share-based payment arrangements as follows
The Growth Shares Scheme (“the Scheme”)

On 30 January 2015, a number of directors acquired C, D, E and F shares in GRHL, for which the directors paid
urrestricted market value The C, D, £ and F shares are subject to a put and call option structure whereby the
directors may sell the shames to GRHWL, or GRHL may acquire the shares from the directors for cash, wathin
vanous 80 day windows between on 1 August 2017 and 30 September 2025 The value at whick the shares can
be bought or sold shall ba determined by a formula based on the growth in value of the shares over a cerain
minimum threshold value The shares provide the holder with an interast in the growth of the business beyond
that threshold, which has bean set at 20% above the onginal value

The number of C,D, E and F shares issued in 2015 and outstanding at 31 March 2018 was 375,085 (31 March
2015 375,085) -

The EBITDA used to determine the value of the C.0 E and F Shares wil be the EBITDA for the year ended
immediately before the date of disposal

Share-based payment expense
The charge recognised in the Income Statement in respect of the Scheme was £5,489,000 (2015 £3,668,000)
Share-based payment liablilty

The Schame requires the Group to pay the intrinsic value of these share-based paymants to the employee at the
date of exercise The liabiity 15 re-valusd at each reporting date and setiemant date with any changes to fair
valug being recognised in the profit and loss account. The Group has recorded liabilltes m respect of unvested
grants of £9,165,000 (2015 £3,666,000)

26. Defined benefit pension schemes

The Group operates three pension schemes on behalf of its employees The Global Radio Group Personal
Pgnsion Plan ("GRGPPP") 1s a defined contnbution scheme

All current employaes are eligble to join the GRGPPR, which new employaes are enrolied 1n automatically when
they begin employmaent with the Group At 31 March 2018 1,219 (2015 1,330) employees were active members
of this scheme The Group makes age-related employer contributions to the scheme

The Capital Radio pic Pension and Assurance Scheme ("CRPPAS") and the Midlands Radio Group Pension
Scheme ("MRGPS™) are contributory defined benefit schemes Both defined banefit schamas were closed to new
employees from 31 March 1995 At 31 March 2018, the MRGPS had 7 (2015 7} active members and the
CRPPAS had 4 (2015 4) active members

The pension cost charge for the year represents contnbutions payable by the Group to the schemes and
amounted to £1,805,000 (2015 £1,415,000)

Contributtens amounting to £288,000 (2015 £260,000) were payable to the schemes at the end of the financiat
year and are included in other creditors

The actual return on the two defined benefit pension schemes assets over the panod from 1 Apnil 2015 to 31
March 2016 was a loss of £221,000 for MRGPS and £2,716,000 for CRPPAS (loss for the panod from 1 Apnil
2014 to 31 March 2015 was £2,523,000 and £2,867,000 respechvely)

The expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption 1s assessed by considenng the current level of
retums on nsk-free investments (pnmanly government bonds) and the expectations for the nsk premium of each
asset class The expected return for each asset class 1s then weighted based on the asset allocation to develop
the expacted long-term rate of return on assets assumpton for the portfolio
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26. Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)

The amounis recognised in the consolidated Statement of Financial Posihon are as follows

31 March 31 March 31 March
2016 2015 2014
£900 £000 £000
Presant value of funded obligations {35,867) {40,808) (33,508)
Fair value of scheme assets 39,391 45,240 40,078
Surplus in scheme 3,524 4,432 6,570
The amounts recogrised tn the consolidated Income Statement are as follows
31 March 31 March 31 March
2018 2015 2014
£000 £'000 £'000
Current service cost (187} (143) (127)
Interest on obligation {1,403) (1,550} {1,525}
Expected return on scheme assets 1,657 1,858 1,618
Total {33) 165 166
Actual return on scheme assets (2,927) 5,390 1,499
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as foliows
31 March 31 March 31 March
2016 2015 2014
£'000 £'000 £'000
Opening defined benefit obligation 40,808 33 508 32,692
Current service cost 187 143 127
Interest cost 1,402 1,550 1,525
Contributions by scheme participants 17 18 {52)
Actuanal (gans)/losses (1,604) 6,161 585
Benefits paid (4,943) (572) {1,369)
35,867 40,808 33,508
Changes in the far value of scheme assets were as follows
31 March 31 March 31 March
2018 2015 2014
£'000 £'000 £000
Opening fair value of schems assets 45,240 40,078 37.438
Expected return on assets 1,657 1,858 1,818
Actuarial (losses)igains {2,739) 3,632 {319)
Contributions by employer 333 438 2,622
Contnbutions by scheme participants 24 25 24
Benefits paid {4,943) (672) (1,3689)
Expenses paid by scheme {81) (118) (138)
39,391 45,240 40,078

The total amount recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of actuanal fosses on
assets (5 £2,739,000 (2015 gawn of £3,532,000) and the amount recognised for acluanal gains on liabiites s

£1,604,000 (2015 loss of £6 161,000)

The two schemas are fully funded by the Group and the scheme members who contnbute a percentage of salary
The funding requirements are based on the pension fund's actuanal measurement framework set out in the

funding policies of the plan

The Group expects to contnbute £333,000 to its defined benefit pension schemes in 2017 (2016 £438 000)
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26 Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)
The major categones of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows

31 March 31 March 31 March

2016 2015 2014
Equities 39 05% 53 99% 54 93%
Bonds 32 70% 32 23% 3094%
Diversified growth funds 28 25% 13 78% 14 13%

Principat actuanal assumptions at the reporting dates ware (expressed as weighted averages)

31 March 31 March 31 March

2018 2015 2014
Discount rate 3.70% 3 50% 465%
Future salary jncreases 310% 310% 345%
Fulure penston increases 3 30% 3 30% 3 48%
Infiation assumption 2 B5% 3 10% 3 45%

The current mortahty assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improverments in moriality rates

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 ara

31 March 31 March 31 March

201€ 2015 2015
Number Number Number
Retiring today
Males 216 224 222
Females 295 24 4 244
Retiring In 20 years
Males 204 292 285
Females 315 313 311

Amounts for the current and previous year are as follows

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2018 2015 2014 2013

£000 £'600 £'000 £'000

Defined benefit obllgation (358,867} {40,808) (33 508) (32,692)
Scheme assets 38,381 44,842 29 905 37 438
3__-,;24 4,134 52397 4,746

Expenence adjustments on scheme Labilities 1,604 {6,161) (516) (2.828)
Expenence adjusiments on scheme assels {2,739) 3,363 (336} 2702

Uinder IAS 18 both schames show & surplus In accordance with {AS 19, the Group has recognised an assat on
the Statement of Financial Position in relation to the surpius in the schemes because the Group has an
uncondiignal nght to realise the surplus dunng the plan or when the plan 18 settled

The Group 1s exposead to a number of nsks relating to the defined benefit schemes (the "schemes”) including
assumptions not being borme out In practice The most significant risks are as foliows
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26 Defined beneflt pansion schemes (continued)
Asget volatliity

Thare 1s a nsk that a fall In asset values Is not matched by corresponding reduction in the value piaced on the
schemes The schemes hold a proportion of growth assets, which are expected to outpsrform corporate or
government bond yields i the long term, but gives exposure to volatiity and risk in the short-term

Change in bond yields

A decrease 1n corporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the scheme's liabilites, although this wilt ba
partialiy offset by an increase in the value of the schema'’s corporate bond holdings

Inflation risk

The majority of the scheme's habilities are linked to inflahon where higher inflation will lead to huigher scheme
hatihes Some of the scheme assets are either unaffected by inflation or loosely correlated with inflation (eg,
growth assets), mearung that an increase wn inflation will generally increase scheme liabilities

Life expactancy

An increase In Iife expectancy will lead to an increased value being placed on the scheme's habitbies Future
mortality rates cannot be predicted with certainty

Actuarial assumption sensitivity

The discount rate 1s set by reference to market condtions at the reporting date, and can vary significantly between
penods The earnings Increases are linked to inflation and so set by referance to market condltions at the
reporting date The mortality assumptions used are set by considering the experience of the scheme’s maembers,
and by making an allowance for possible future improvements in longevity Mortelity assumptions are drfficult to
set accurately, and forecasting rates of future mortality improvement 1s inevitably speculative

Actuarial assumption sensitivity

The discount rate, eamings Increases and inflabon rates are set by reference to market conditions at the reporting
date, and can vary significantly between periods

A decrease In tha discount rate by 0 1% will increase the scheme’s liabilities by £667 000

An increase in inflation and salary growth assumptions by 0 1% will increase the scheme's llablities by £256,000
27. Note supporting Statement of Cash Flowa

Significant non cash transactions in the year n respect of financing activities compnsed unpaid interest which was
capiialised into borrowings of £61,510,000 (2015 £82,996,000) and £49,167,980 of loans wars converted to share
capital

28 Immediate and ultimate parent Company

In the opimion of the dwectars the Company’'s iImmediate and ulbmate contrelling Company s Gilobal Radio Group
Limited, @ company incorporated in Jersey

The largest and smallest Group in which the results of the Company are conscolidated 1s that headed by Global
Racho Group Limited

29 Guarantees, financial commitments and contingent liahilities
Guarantees
The Company will guarantee the debts and hiabilities of certain UK subsidares {as asterisked in nota 33) at the

reporting date in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 The Company has assessed the
probability of loss under these guarantees as remote

Sacurity

The assets of the Group are pledged to thalr bankers as securnty against loans by way of a floating charge over
the assets

VAT Group

Tha Company 13 @ membar of a group for VAT for group purposes, resulting in a Joint and sevaral liability for
amounts owing by other Group companies fir unpaid VAT

Financlal commitments
The Group has enterad into agreements with transmission supply companies and digital multipiex operators for the

transmission of its radio stations for periods up to 2022 at competitive prices and to ensure supply At the year end
the commitments to purchase space on transmitiers was £80,053,000 (2015 £121,480,000}
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30 First time adoption of IFRS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2016, ars the first the Group has prepared 1n accardance
with IFRS For periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group prepared its financial
statements in agcordance with UK GAAP

The date of transition to IFRS (the “transiton date”} was 1 Apnl 2014

The accounting policies described i note 1 were applied when preparing the opening IFRS Group Statement of
Financial Positfon at the transiton date and the Group Income Statement, Group Statement of Comprehensive
Income, Group Statement of Financsa) Position, Group Statement of Changes in Equily and Group Statament of
Cash Flows from the transition date to 31 March 2016

Ths note explains the principal adjustments made by the Group in restating its UK GAAP Group Balance Shaet
{to IFRS Group Statement of Financial Positon) as at 1 Aprit 2014 and 31 March 2015 and UK GAAP Group Profit
and Loss Account (to IFRS Group Income Statement) and Group Statemant of Recogrused Gains and Losses (lo
IFRS Group Statement of Other Comprehensive Incoma) for the year ended 31 March 2015,

In prepanng its opening IFRS Group Statement of Financial Posiion and adjusting amounts reported praviously in
accordance with UK GAAP the Group has applied IFRS 1 which confams a number of voluntary exemptions and
mandatory exceptions from the requirement to apply IFRS retrospectively

Exceptions and Exemptions used during transition to IFRS

The Group has applied the mandatory exception required by IFRS 1 1n the conversion from UK GAAP to IFRS
which requires that hindsight 18 not used to create or revise estmates The estimates previously made by the
Company under UK GAAP wera not rewised for the application of IFRS except whare necessary lo reflact any
difference i accounting palicles :

Adjustments Mado In Connection with transition to IFRS

The most significant impacis of the adoption of IFRS on the Group's previously reported financiai information are
as follows

* Under UK GAAP borrowings were valued at the normnal value of the loan and then at amorised
cost Under IFRS borrowmngs ara iibally valued at the far value of the loan and then amortised cost

« The reclassification of capitafised software costs from tangble fixed assets to mtangible assets

«  Under UK GAAP the surplus on the defined banefit schemes was nol recognieed on the balance
sheet Under IFRS the sumplus on the schemes 1s recognised on the Statement of Financial Position

Impact on the cash flow statements

The Group has made 8 number of reclassifications to the values reported under UK GAAP n order to present s
Statement of Cash Flows in accordance with IFRS These reclassification adjustments have no significant impact
on tha results presentad for each type of the Group's activities.

The transitton from UK GAAP to IFRS has not had a material impact on the Statement of Cash Flows
Thae following tables give the reconciiations of

e UK GAAP Group Balance Sheet to IFRS Group Statement of Financial Position at 1 April 2014 and
31 March 2015

* UK GAAP Group Profit and Loss account to IFRS Group income Statement fer the year ended 31
March 2015

¢ UK GAAP Group Staternent of Total Recogrised Gains and Losses to IFRS Group Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 March 2015
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a0 Flrst time adoption of IFRS (continuad)
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8 Borrowmngs — Under UK GAAP borrowings were valued at the nominal valua of the loan and then at amortised
cost Under IFRS borrowings are initially vatued at the fair value of the loan and then amortised cost

™ Software costs - Under UK GAAP capitalised software costs were classified as part of the associated fixed
assets Under IFRS capitalised software costs are classified as intangible assets )

& Radio heances — Under UK GAAF radio icences were classified as tangible assets Under IFRS radio icences
gre classified as intangible assets

& Amortisation of goodwilt — Under UK GAAP goodwill was amortised over 20 years Under IFRS goodwil! is not
amortised

® Lease Incentives - Under UK GAAP jease incentives are amorused over the penod of assooated penefit being
the shorter of the penod of the leasa or the penod to the next rent review date Under IFRS lease incentives are
amortised over the term of the lease

% Loan transaction costs - Undar UK GAAP loan transaction costs are recorded as a debtor and then amortised
over the penod of the loan Under IFRS the loan transaction costs are netted off the value of the loan and then
amortised over the penod of the loan

W Surplus on the dafined benefit scheme — Under UK GAAP the surplus on the defined benefit scheme was not
recorded on the balance sheet. Under IFRS the surpius on the defined benefit schame 1s recorded as an asset on
the statement of financial position, with the movement being taken to the income statement and the statement of
comprehensive mncome
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This is Global Limited

Company Balance Sheet
At 31 March 2016
Company number 06251684

Fixed assots
Investments

Current assots

Debtors

Cash

Creditors amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets

Total assote {oss currant llabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Net liabllitios

Equity
Share capital
Retained deficit

The notes cn pages 48 to 55 form part of these financial statements

Note

33

34

a5

36

37

31 March 31 March
2018 2015
£'000 £'000
92,440 92,440
92,440 92,440
377,613 373,300
18 9
377,631 373,309
(46,079) (40,323)
331,482 332,986
423,892 425,426
{820,872) {831,049)
{396,980) {405,623)
49,167 -
{446.147) (405.823)
{398,980) (405,623)

The financial statements were approved and authonsed for i1ssue by the board of directors on 28 July 2016 and

waere signad on its bahalf by
O S

DD Singer

Dwector

29 July 2016
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Share capital Retalned Total equity
deflcit
£000 £000 £000
At1 Apri1 2018 - (405,623) {405,623)
Loss for the year - (40,524) {40,524)
Issued in the year 49,187 - 49,167
At 31 March 2016 40,167 (4468,147) {398,980}

The notes on pages 468 to 55 form part of thase financial statsments
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31 Accounting poticies for the Company financlal statements
a) Reporting entity

This 1s Global Limited (the "Company’) 1 incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom
The Company's principal activity was the operation of commercial radio stations in the United Kingdom

Tha Company financial statements were appraved by the board of directors on 29 July 2016
b) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
100 Application of Financial Reporting Requirements ("FRS 1007) and Financial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework {*FRS 101} and the Companies Act 2006

As permitted by Section 408(2) of the Companies Act 2008 information about the Company's employee numbers
and costs have not been pressnted

As permitted by Section 408({3) of the Compames Act 2008, the Company's Profit and Loss Account and
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income and related notes have not been presented as the Company's Group
Accounts have baen prepared in accordance with the Compares Act 2008

¢) Functional and presentational currency

These financial statements are presented in pounds Steriing {£), which 1s the Company's functional and
presentational currency All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated

d) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, and are in accordance with the
Companes Act 2006

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements

For all perods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company prepared financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Pnnciples (UK GAAP") These financial

statements for the year endad 31 March 2016 are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with FRS
100 and FRS 101,

The Company's deemed transition date to FRS 100 and FRS 101 was 1 Apnl 2014 This change in the basis of
praparation has matenally alterad the recogmition and measurement requirements previousiy applied in
accordance with UK GAAP Details of how the transition from UK GAAP to FRS 100 and FRS 101 has affected
ihe Company's raported positron and performance are given in note 39 to the Company financial statemeants

In prepanng these financial statements the company has taken advantage of all disclosurea exemptions
conferred by FRS 101 Tharefore these financial statements do not include

certain comparative infermation as otherwize required by EU endorsed IFRS,
certain disclosures regarding the company’s capital,

a Statemant of Cash Flows,

the effect of future accounting standards not yet adopted,

the disclosure of the remuneration of key management perscnnel, and

disclosure of related party transactions with other wholly owned members of the group headed by
This 13 Global Limited

P T R Y

In additton, and 1 accordance with FRS 101, further disclosure exemptons have been adopted bacause
equivalent disclosures are included 1n the Group financial statements of This 1s Global Limited These financial
statements do not include certain disclosures in respect of

= Financial Instruments (other than centain disclosures required as a result of recording financal
instruments at fair vaiue),

Fair value measurement (other than cerain disclosures required as & result of racording financial
instruments at fair value), and

« Impairment of assats
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This is Global Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)
3 Accounting polhicies for the Company financial statements (continued}
o) Investments

Investments are included in the Balance Sheet at cost less amounts wntten-off, representing impairment in value
Imparment charges are reconded if events or changes in crcumstances mdicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverabla

f) Going concern

At the date of these accounts, the directors have carned out a detalled and com prehensiva review of the business
ang s future prospects In particular they have compared the forecast future performanca of the Company and
anticipated cash flows with the available working capital faciities and covenants contained in the barking
arrangements that form part of the Company's current financing structure and, in the light of current economic
conditions, have considared the abllity of the group to meet its obligations as they fall due In the opinion af the
directors, the Company are expected to be able to continue trading within the current arrangements and
consequently the financial statemenis are presentied on a gong concern basis

g} Accounting policies for the Company financial statements

The Company's accounting policies are the same as the Group's accounting policies, as detailed in note 1 to the
Group financial statements, for the following

Gompany FRS 101 accounting policy Group IFRS accounting pollcy Note
New accounting standards New accounting standards 19
Cncal accounting estimates and judgments Cntical accounting estimates and judgments th
Debtors Trade and other recewvables ip
Cash Cash 1q
Share capital Share capital ir
Credidors Trade and other payables is
Interest recewvable and stmilar income Finance income and expense 1u
Interest payable and simifar expense Financg income and expense 1u
Financial instruments Financial instruments v
Current and deferred tax Current and defarred tax 1w
Revenue recognition Revenue recognition 1aa
Fair value measurement Fair value measurement 1ce

32 Directors
Information an Company s directors 15 provided in note 6 to the Group financial statements
33 Investments

lnveatments in Total
subsidiary
companies
£°000 £000
At 1 April 2015 92 440 92 440
At 31 March 2016 92,440 92,440
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This is Global Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)

33 Investments (continued)

The Company's subsidianes, including subsidiaries held by indirect holding companies, are

Name Country % Ownership
Amber Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Angels in Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Arrow Dhgital Limited United Kingdom 100
Atlantic Broadeasting Limited” United Kingdom 100
Beat FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Belfast Radio limeted United Kingdom 100
Border Limited United Kingdom 100
Bnstol Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
Bristol Radio Company Limited United Kingdom 100
Buzz FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Cambrdge and Newmarket FM Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital {CDWM) Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Gold Hampshire Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Gold Kent Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Gold Manchester Limited” United Kingdom 100
Capital Gold Sussex Umited United Kingdom 100
Capital Interactive Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Online Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Radio (London) Lirnited United Kingdom 100
Capital Radio Investments Limited® Umited Kingdom 100
Capital Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Radio Restaurants Group Lumited United Kingdom 100
Capital Radio Restaurants Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Radio Trustee Limited Uruted Kingdom 100
Capal Television Limited Urited Kingdom 100
Capital Xtra Limited” United Kingdom 100
Castieform Limited United Kingdom 100
Central European Broadcasting Limited United Kingdom 100
Central Region News Limited Umited Kingdom 100
Champion FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Cheerdale Limited Untted Kingdom 100
Chilt Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Chiltern Radic Limited* United Kingdom 100
Choice FM London Limited United Kingdom 100
Chaice FM North London Limited United Kingdom 100
Classic FM BV Netherlands 100
Classic FM Limted* United Kingdom 100
Core Digitat Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Cotswold Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
Deansgate 1001 Limited United Kingdom 100
Davonair Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Diamond FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Digital News Network Limited United Kingdam 100
Digital Two Limited United Kingdom 100
DG Radio Services Limited* United Kingdom 100
East Anghan Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Ecast Ventures Limited United Kingdom 100
Essex Radio Limited* Urnited Kingdom 100
Expressway Limited Umted Kingdom 100
Faze Three {East Midlands) Lirited United Klngdom‘ 100

"Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee - Entity's debts and habiites are guaranteed by the Company at the
reporting date in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006,
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This is Global Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)

a3 Investments {continued)

The Company's subsidianes, including subsidiaries held by in direct holding companies, are

Name Country % Dwnership
First Oxfordshire Radio Company Limited® United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio Birmingham Limited* Urited Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio Manchester Limited United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radto North East Limited” United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio Yorkshire Limited® United Kingdom 100
GCap FRB {No 1) Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap FRB (No 2) Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Local Data Company Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Media {CRUD) Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Media (FPRL) Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Media (The Jazz) Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Media Limited United Kingdom 100
Geminu Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Glasgow Gold Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Madia Ventures Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Music Television Limited® United Kingdom 100
Global Music TV Lymited United Kingdom 100
Global Radio (AM) Limited” United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Acquisiions Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Digital Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Ratio Hampshire Limited* United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Holdings Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Limited United ¥ingdom 100
Global Radio London Limited* United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Media Management Limited* United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Midlarids Limited* United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Publishing Limited* United Kingdom 100
Giobal Radio Services Limited Umited Kingdom 100
Global Radio UK Limited United Kingdom 100
GM Radio News (UK) Limited United Kingdom 55
GMG Radio Limited Umited ¥ingdom 100
Greater Manchester Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR {Local Arga) Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR {Trustee Company} Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR (West) Linuted* United Kingdorn 100
GWR East Holdings Limited” United Kingdom 100
GWR Group Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR Hungary (Investments} Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR International Investments Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR {ntermational Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR New Zea'and Licences Limited New Zealand 100
GWR New Zealand Limited New Zealand 100
GWR Radlo (South East) Limited” United Kingdom 100
GWR Rad:o Limited United Kingdom 100
Harlow FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Healthbuild Limited United Kingdom 100
Heart 106 FM Limited United Kingdom 100
We the Unicorns Limited* United Kingdom 100

*Exemption from Audi by Parent Guarantee - Entity's debts snd liabilities are guaranteed by the Company at the

reporting date in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006




This is Global Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)

33  Investments {continued)

The Company's subsidianes, including subsidianes held by in direct holding companies, are

Name Country % Ownership
Heant Radwo Limited United Kingdom 100
Heart TV Limited United Kingdom 100
Hereward Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Hit 40 UK Limited United Kingdom 100
Hopstar Limited*” United Kingdom 100
Independent Radio News Limited Unuted Kingdom 55
Investors in Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Inwicta Cancerts and Promotions Lumited United Kingdom 100
tradio Limited United Kingdom 100
Jams of London Limited Urnited Kingdom 100
Juice Holdco Limited* Umited Kingdom 100
Lantern Radio Limited Urnited Kingdom g9
LBC 1152 Limited United Kingdom 100
LBC Radio Limited” United Kingdom 100
Lelcester Sound Limited®* United Kingdom 100
Livetime Limited Uruted Kingdom 100
London Broadcasting Company 1986 Limited Urited Kingdom 100
Love FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Marcher Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Mid Anglia Radio Limited*® United Kingdom 100
Mwah Mwah Limited United Kingdom 100
MXR Holdings Limited United Kingdom a8
MXR Limited United Kingdom 88
My Kinda Bath Limited United Kingdom 100
My inda Bones Limited United Kingdom 100
My Kinda Shacks Limited United Kingdom 100
My Kinda Square Limited United Kingdom 100
Neal Street Blues Limited Untted Kingdom 100
Newsradio com Ltmited United Kingdom 100
North East News Limited United Kingdom 100
North East Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
North West News Limited United Kingdom 100
Now Digital {North Wales, Wirral and Cheshire} Limited Urited Kingdom 100
Ocean FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Opus Radwo Sales Limited Urted Kingdom 100
Qrchard FM Limited* United Kingdom 100
Orchard Media Limited United Kingdom 100
Oval (708) Limited United Kingdom 100
Plymouth Sound Limited* United Kingdom 100
Power FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Prock Licence (NTLRSL) Limited United Kingdom 100
Radio Breeze AM Limited United Kingdom 100
Radio Broadland Limited* United Kingdom 100
Radio Inwicta Limited* United Kingdom 100
Radio Mercury Limited* United Kingdom 100
Radio Orwell Limited United Kingdom 100
Radio Runner Limited United Kingdom 100
Radio South Limited United Kingdom 100
Radio Trent Limited® United Kingdom 100
RAM FM Limited United Kingdom ° 100

*Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee - Entity's debts and liabllies are guaranteed by the Company at the
reporting date in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006

50




This is Global Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)
33 Investmonts (continued)
The Company’s subsidianes, including subsickaries held by in direct holding companies, are

Name Country % Ownership
Resal and Smooth Limited* Urited Kingdom 100
Real Radio (North East) Limited” United Kingdom 100
Rea! Radio (North West) Limjted* Umited Kingdom 100
Real Radio (Scotland) Limited* United Kingdom 100
Real Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Rwiera Radto Limited United Kingdomn 100
Rock Radio Limited . United Kingdom 100
Saxon Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Scott Place 1002 Limted United Kingdom 100
Scott Place 1003 Limited United Kingdom 100
Scott Place 1004 Limited United Kingdom 100
Smooth Digital Radia Limited United Kingdom 100
Smooth Radic Investments Limited* United Kingdom 100
Smooth Radio London Limited” United Kingdom 100
Smocth Radio Scotland Limited* United Kingdom 100
Smooth Radio West Midlands Limited” United Kingdom 100
South Hams Radio Limuted Unitad Kingdom 635
Southern Radio Group Limited* United Kingdom 100
Southern Radio Linuted* United Kingdom 100
Storm (GWR) Limited Unite@ Kingdom 100
Storm Broadcasting Limited United Kingdom 100
Suffolk Group Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Tainside Limited® United Kingdom 100
Thames Vatley Broadcasting Group Limited United Kingdom 100
Thames Valley Broadcasting Lirmited* United Kingdom 100
Thamesquote Limited” United Kingdom 100
The Arrow (Liverpool) Limited United Kingdom 100
The Arrow (Manchester) Limited Umted Kingdom 100
The Digital Radic Group (Investments) Limited* Umted Kingdom 100
The Digital Radio Group (West Midlands) Limited United Kingdom 100
The Digstat Radio Group Limited” United Kingdom 100
The Milton Keynes Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingcom 100
The Northamptonshire Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
The Storm (Digital Radio) Limited United Kingdom 100
TS Heldings Limited United Kingdom 100
Two Counties Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Vibe FM Limited Urnited Kingdam 100
Warmmington Runcorn Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
Welovelocal com Limitad* United Kingdom 100
West and South Yorkshire Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
West Country Broadcasting Limited United Kingdom 100
Woest Midlands Radic Limited United Kingdom 100
Westward Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Woestward Television Limited United Kingdom 100
Wiltshire Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
World Television Productions Limited United Kingdom 100
Xfrn Limited* United Kingdom 100
Xfm Manchester Limited® United Kingdom 100
PopBuzz Limited* United Kingdom 100

*Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee - Entity’s debts and liabtities are guaranteed by the Company at the
reporting date in accordance with sechon 4794 of the Companies Act 2006
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This is Global Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)

34 Dabtors

Loans to subsidianes
Amounts owed by group undertakings
Deferred tax asset

35 Creditors® amounts falling due wsthin one year

Bank loans and overdrafts
Accrued Interest
Amounts owed to group undertakings

'

36 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Bank loans
Other loans

7 Share capital

Issued, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £1

Ouring the year £49,166,980 of loans were converted to 49,166,980 ordinary £1 shares which ware issued, called

up and fully paid
38 Ralated party transactions

As disclosed in note 23 and n accordance with the exemptions in FRS 101 the Company 18 not raquired to
disclose selated party transactions with key management personnel or between members of the Group The

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

E'000 £'000
367,313 255,420
5,637 113,490
4,663 4,380
377,513 373 300

31 March 2018

31 March 2015

£'000 E000
25,000 25,000
17,184 15,159
3,885 164
48,079 40,323

31 March 2018

31 March 2015

£'000 £'000
142,736 195,680
878,137 535,369
820,872 831,049

31 March 31 March

2016 2015

£ £
49,168,981 1
49,166,981 1

Company has not completed any related party transactions with any other entities or parties
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This is Global Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)
39.  Firet adoption of FRS 100 and FRS 101

These finenaat statements. for the year ended 31 March 2016, are the first the Company has prepared in
accordance with FRS 101 For penods up to and inchuding the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company
prepared its financial statements 1n accordance with UK GAAP

The date of transition to FRS 101 was 1 Apnl 2014 (the *transition date™)

The accounting policies descnbed in note 31 were applied when prepanng the opening FRS 101 Balance Sheet
at the transition date and tha Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Comprehansiva Incoms, Balance Sheet
and Statement of Changes i Equity from the transition date to 31 March 2016

This note explains the pnncipal adjustments made by the Company in restating s UK GAAP financial resuits to
FRS 101 as at 1 Apnt 2014 and 31 March 2015 and for the year ended 31 March 2015

This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its UK GAAFP Balance Sheet as at
1 Aprl 2014 and 31 Merch 2015, UK GAAP Profit and Loss Account and Statement of Recogmised Gens and
Losses (to FRS 101 Statement of Other Comprehensive Income) for the year endad 31 March 2015

In preparing its opening FRS 101 Balance Shest and adjusting amounts reported previously in accordance with
UK GAAP the Company has applied IFRS 1 which contains a number of voluntary exemptions and mandatory
excaptions from the raquirament to apply IFRS retrospectivaly

Exceptions and Exemptions used during transition to IFRS

The Company has apphed the mandatory exception required by IFRS 1 in the conversion from UK GAAP to FRS
101 which requires that hindsight 1s not used to creats or ravise estimetes The estimates previously made by the
Company under UK GAAP were not revised for the application of FRS 101 except where necessary to reflect any
difference in accounting policies

Adjustments Made In Connection with transition to FRS 101

The most sigruficant tmpacts of the adopton of IFRS on the Group's previously raported financial wformation are
as follows

« Under FRS 101 loans are valued at fay value on wibial recognition, under UK GAAP loans were
valued at nominal value

« lUndar FRS 101 loans to subsidianes are classified as corediors, under UK GAAP they were
classified as an investmant

« Under FRS 101 loan transacticn costs are netted off the Ioan which they relate to, under UK GAAP
thay were recognised as a debtor

The foltowang tables give the reconciliabions of

» UK GAAP Balance Sheet to FRS 101 Balance Sheet at 1 Apnil 2014
UK GAAP Balance Sheet ta FRS 101 Balance Sheet at 31 March 2015
UK GAAP Profit and Loss Account to FRS 101 Profit and Loss accounting for the year ended 31
March 2015

o UK GAAP Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses to FRS 101 Statement of Other
Comprehensive Incoms for the year ended 31 March 2015
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38 First adoption of FRS 100 and FRS 101 (continued)

Reconcitlatisn ¢f the € Batance Ehaet | 2014
Reclasstiicaten of loans ings ™ Loan on cost =
UK GAAP % sutreidiaries to FRS 107
borrowtam
‘000 o000 €0 E000 E000
Fixad st st
Hnvesiments 348360 > L3 - 80 94D
= s @342 - - 90,840
Current assais
Cusn N . - - -
Dsbiore [ 1310} 255420 31 344250
29573 225420 n [T T] 344 58
CradRers. arpourds faling dus wihin one yesr (42 181) - - . {42 181y
Nt cunom assets 4T 412 255 420 " 768) 302 095
Total sucsta lena current llusdition 9 - L3l (168} 303 038
Craditors amounis lailing cus after mone than ons yesr (782 207) - [LE L] 788 (768 120)
ta iroine g 2 - L
Equity
Share caphig! - - - -
Reiained aefich =
—fui - fist SR
Reconcilixtien of the Coprpany Datance Kheet st 31 areh 2018
Reclassification of lane g Lown conts
UK GAAP o sabaidlaries to FRY 1M
borrowines *)
Eond £oud E'000 000 000
Fixed sassts
Invasimens M?& @ém - - n_zuo
342,060 2584200 - 2440
Current anzels
Dobiors 114 B8S 285420 4 390 (1 478) 3730
Cash ] = - 0 []
194,678 WA 4390 (VAT 372308
Cradiiors amounts falling dus within one yaht {40323y - - - {40323}
N#l current sessts TA L] 25420 1390 {1 428} ERFL)
Totsl asasts less current Uabilities A22 642 . 4 390 {1470} 425 428
Creditors amaunts falling due ater mers than one yuar (804 110) - (28 408) 1478 (831 DAty
ettt = o— i) i
Equity
Shars capiial . B B -
Ruelained deficlt ﬁ‘ 807} . ﬁ - 405 82,
Profil and loss account Tor year enviod 31 March 2018
Rectassificailon of Ings ™  Loan
foens 10 costa !
UK GAAF subsidlaries to FR3 101
barrowings L
€000 £0a0 E 000 E'D0C £'000
Tumover - - - - -
Qpoaraing chargss - s - -
Oparating loss - - - - .
Divdangs received 26 725 - . 26 728
FinBnce Incoms 20 488 - - . 20 408
FInance axpanss (69 851} - {21 814) - {91 788)
Loss on ordinary activitias before taxstion (22 728) - {21 814) - (44 542)
Tax on Ioss on ardnary activilan 9 646 . 4 369 - 14015
Loss for the financlal yoar {13 082} - (ﬂLM‘ﬂ - QD.&.‘!?)
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39. First adoption of FRS 100 and FRS 101 {continued)

Roconcillation of the Company siatement of comprahanaive incoms for the ynar snded 31 March 2018
Recltasslfication of B gs ™ Losn lon
) loans coats ™
UK subsidiacias to FR3 101
bosrowinas ¥
£'000 £000
Losa far the fnanclat year {13082) - (17 845} - 30 827)
{tams thet may be reclasiifled to profit or
loas
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Increase n pansion surplus nal ecagmiadd N " *
Other comprahianalve joes for the yesr, net of
tax {12082) - {17, 445) - {30 527)
Total comprehensiva lass for the year “2""‘ . 117, 445) - Po 521‘

™ Reclassification of Ioans to subsidianes to borrowings - Under UK GAAP loans to subsidianas were recorded as
an investment Under FRS 101 ioans due from subsidianes are recorded as e debtor

) Borrowings - Under UK GAAP borrowings were valued at the nominal value of the loan and then at amortised
cost. Under FRS 101 barrowings are wutially valued at the fair value of the loan and then amortised cost

@ { oan transaction costs — Under UK GAAP loan transaction costs are recorded as a debtor and then amortised
over the penod of the loan Under FRS 101 the ioan transaction costs are netted off the value of the loan and then

amorbsed over tha penad of the tean
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